FORT{I -

THE

TO: Members of the Board of Directors
FROM: Bruce Steadman
Secretary & Executive Director
DATE: May 16, 2012
SUBJECT: Agenda for Board Meeting of the Authority
1. Call to Order — James V. Gorman, Chairman
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Notice of Public Meeting - Roll Call — Bruce Steadman, Secretary
4, Approval of Previous Month’s Board Meeting Minutes
5. Welcome — James V. Gorman, Chairman
6. Secretary’s Report
7. Treasurer’s Report:
e Summary of Status of Federal Grant and FMERA Financials
8. Public Comment Regarding Agenda Items
9. Executive Director’s Report:
"o Update on Meetings with Army Representatives
e Update on Proposed Plan Amendment Process
e Update on FMERA Office Move to Fort Monmouth
e Update on Master Broker/Real Estate Consultant Request for
Proposals
e Update on Land Use Regulations
e Update on Action Items
10. Committee Reports

Audit Committee — Michael Mahon, Acting Chairman

Real Estate Committee — James V. Gorman, Acting Chairman
Environmental Staff Advisory Committee — Ken Kloo, Chairman
Historical Preservation Staff Advisory Committee — Bruce
Steadman, Acting Chairman

Housing Staff Advisory Committee — Charles Richman, Chairman



11.

12.

14.

e Veterans Staff Advisory Committee — Lillian Burry, Chairwoman

Board Actions

1. Consideration of Approval of First Plan Amendment Permitting
Alternative Development Scenario in Tinton Falls

2. Consideration of Approval of Award of Design-Build Request
for Proposals (RFP)

3. Consideration of Approval of the Authority’s Comprehensive
Annual Report for 2011, as required under Executive Order No.
37

4.  Consideration of Approval of a Credit Facility from the New Jersey
Economic Development Authority (EDA) Totaling $4.5 Million for
Economic Development Conveyance Working Capital Purposes and
Renovation Costs

Other Items

Public Comment

Adjournment



Fort Monmouth Economic Revitalization Authority
Board Meeting
April 24,2012
Eatontown Municipal Building, Eatontown, New Jersey

MINUTES OF THE MEETING

Members of the Authority present:

e James V. Gorman, Chairman, Fort Monmouth Economic Revitalization
Authority (FMERA) - V
e Caren Franzini, CEQ, New Jersey Economic Development Authority

opm
(NJEDA) - V

e Kerstin Sundstrom, Assistant Counsel, Authorities Unit, Office of the Governor - V

e Dr. Robert Lucky, Public Member - V

o Lillian Burry, Monmouth County Freeholder -V

e Gerald Tarantolo, Mayor of Eatontown - V

e Gerald Turning, Business Administrator, Tinton Falls - V

e Michael Mahon, Mayor of Oceanport - V

e David Sweeney, Assistant Commissioner, NJ Department of Environmental Protection (DEP)

e Charles Richman, Assistant Commissioner, NJ Department of Community Affairs (DCA)

e Jonathan Lowy, Director of Community and Constituent Relations, NJ Department of
Transportation (DOT)

e Mary Ellen Clark, Assistant Commissioner, NJ Department of Labor and Workforce
Development (LWD)

V- Denotes Voting Member

Also present:
e Bruce Steadman, Executive Director, FMERA
e Gabriel Chacon, Deputy Attorney General (DAG)
o FMERA Staff

IL

The meeting was called to order by Chairman James V. Gorman at 7:03 pm who led the meeting in the
Pledge of Allegiance.

In accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act, FMERA Executive Director and Secretary, Bruce
Steadman announced that notice of this meeting has been sent to the Asbury Park Press and the Star
Ledger at least 48 hours prior to the meeting, that a meeting notice has been duly posted on the
Secretary of State’s bulletin board at the State House, and the FMERA and the NJEDA websites.

The first item of business was the approval of the March 21, 2012 meeting minutes. A motion was

made to approve the minutes by Mayor Tarantolo, seconded by Freeholder Burry and unanimously
approved by all voting members.



The second item of business was the approval of the March 21, 2012 executive session meeting
minutes. A motion was made to approve the minutes by Freeholder Burry, seconded by Mayor
Tarantolo and unanimously approved by all voting members.

WELCOME

Chairman James V. Gorman welcomed attendees to the Board Meeting and noted that there are two
items of special significance at the Meeting that are in addition to the regular board meeting activities.
The Board of Directors will consider approving a revised Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the
U.S. Army and a purchase-sale agreement with CommVault Systems, Inc. (CommVault) for Parcel E
in the Tinton Falls section of the former Fort Monmouth property. The MOA has been negotiated over
the past several months and is the binding document, containing the terms and conditions of the
Economic Development Conveyance (EDC) of the property from the U.S. Army to FMERA.
Approval of the purchase-sale agreement with CommVault is necessary to facilitate the sale of the first
property by FMERA and the U.S. Army. Both board actions are significant milestones.

The Chairman went on to state that there will be two comment periods at the meeting. The first
comment period is for agenda items only and the Chairman asked for the public’s cooperation in
keeping their comments as brief as possible. The Chairman explained that the second public comment
period is towards the end of the meeting agenda and is open to the full range of FMERA business. The
Chairman reiterated his request for the public’s cooperation in keeping comments as brief as possible.
The Chairman continued by stating that in his role as Chairman he is required to conduct an orderly
meeting and complete the meeting agenda in a reasonable time period. The Chairman concluded by
stating that FMERA continues to welcome the public’s constructive comments and ideas.

IV. SECRETARY’S REPORT

Mr. Steadman stated that there is nothing to report at this time.

V. TREASURER’S REPORT

Beverlee Akerblom, Director of Finance and Administration, stated that the Authority’s grant
amendments for the existing grants which were scheduled to close March 31, 2012 have been approved
by the Office of Economic Adjustment (OEA). The extension of the grants through June 30, 2012 will
allow for completion of the approved contractual items funded through the grants. Ms. Akerblom
continued by stating that a new Grant Application has been submitted to OEA in support of the
Authority’s operations. The funds being requested from the OEA are consistent with the budget
approved by the Authority’s Board for fiscal year 2012 and presented to the State’s Office of
Management and Budget, in support of the Authority’s appropriation request for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2013. Field work on the audit of the Authority’s 2011 operations has been completed. Ms.
Akerblom concluded by stating that spending continues to be strictly monitored.

Mayor Tarantolo asked if the completed audit is public information.

Ms. Akerblom explained that the field work on the audit has been completed and that the report has
been issued in draft form. The Audit Committee will review the draft report and meet with Auditors in
May. Following the Audit Committee’s review, the report will be presented to the full Board of
Directors. After the Board of Directors’ review and approval the report will become public.

2



VI. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING AGENDA ITEMS

Tom Mahedy requested a copy of the revised MOA and asked Bruce Steadman to read the document
to him.

Mr. Steadman stated that the document would not be read because it is still the subject of negotiations
with the U.S. Army. Mr. Steadman explained that following the Board of Directors’ approval of the
MOA, it will go back to the U.S. Army for a final review. The document will not become public until
it is executed by both FMERA and the U.S. Army.

Mr. Mahedy then stated that he believes that CommVault will be receiving a reduced price for the land
and subsidies, and that it is not right because the State is broke.

Mr. Mahedy then asked the Board of Directors to vote no on both of the board actions on the agenda.

Mr. Mahedy asked who did the appraisal for Parcel E.

Mr. Mahedy was told that FMERA went out for quotes for the appraisal of Parcel E and that Gagliano
and Company did the appraisal. Additionally, out an abundance of caution, FMERA received a second
appraisal report on the property which was done by the Value Research Group. In addition, Mr.

Steadman noted that CommVault offered to pay substantially more than the value quoted in the
appraisal.

Mr. Mahedy stated that groundwater on the Fort is not suitable to drink, but is being used for
landscaping.

Mr. Steadman stated that Mr. Mahedy is not correct and that in the Army’s Finding of Suitability to
Transfer (FOST) for Parcel E there is a stipulation that drinking wells not be dug on Parcel E. This
was done from a pure safety standpoint as the Army did not want wells dug on Parcel E, but it did not
stem from any contaminated groundwater condition.

VII. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Mr. Steadman provided an update on meetings with Army representatives. Mr. Steadman stated that
the Army remains the owner of the former Fort Monmouth property until such time that title transfers
to FMERA. As the property owner, the Army is an active participant in the land conveyance process.
Therefore, FMERA staff continues its discussions with representatives of the Office of the Deputy
Assistant Secretary of the Army for Installation and Housing related to the conveyance of the former
Fort Monmouth property. Weekly conference calls are used to update the status of key issues. These
discussions continue to establish a good working relationship with the Army and have resulted in a
finalized Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) that the Board of Directors will consider approving at
tonight’s meeting of the Authority. Mr. Steadman added that FMERA has an excellent working
relationship with the U.S. Army and NJDEP on environmental issues.

Mr. Steadman then provided an update on the proposed plan amendment process. Mr. Steadman noted
that FMERA staff met with representatives from Eatontown, Oceanport and Tinton Falls on March 8,
2012 to officially transmit the proposed plan amendment and to discuss the 45 day review period. The
proposed amendment to the Fort Monmouth Reuse and Redevelopment Plan would allow, as an

3



alternative, commercial development on Parcel E while moving the housing that was proposed on
Parcel E in the Reuse and Redevelopment Plan to other areas of the Tinton Falls section of the former
Fort Monmouth property. The 45 day review period expired on April 23, 2012. In accordance with
the FMERA Act, each host municipality may provide a report with comments on the proposed plan
amendment within the 45 day review period. Comment reports were received from 2 of the Boroughs,
and provided to the Attorney General’s Office. FMERA and the Attorney General’s Office will draft
responses to the comment reports. The proposed plan amendment, the reports received from the
municipalities, and FMERA’s proposed responses will be reviewed by the FMERA Housing Staff

Advisory Committee and Real Estate Committee prior to the full Board’s consideration, which is
expected in May.

Richard Harrison, Director of Facilities Planning, provided an update on the FMERA Office move to
Fort Monmouth. Mr. Harrison stated that FMERA issued a publically advertised Design-Build Request
for Proposals on March 29, 2012 for Building 502, the former Post Library, on the former Fort
Monmouth property. A mandatory site visit was held on April 5, 2012 and a mandatory pre-proposal
conference was held at the FMERA Office on April 9, 2012. Proposals are due by April 27, 2012 at
noon. Building 502 will be converted into office space that the Authority hopes to occupy at the end of
the summer. When the Authority office moves to the former Fort Monmouth property, there will be a
system in place to provide the public with access to the office. Mr. Harrison concluded by stating that
FMERA hopes to bring a recommendation to the Board for their consideration in May.

Mr. Harrison continued with an update on the Master Broker/Real Estate Consultant Request for
Proposals. FMERA issued a publically advertised Request for Proposals for a Master Broker/Real
Estate Consultant on Monday, April 16, 2012. A mandatory pre-proposal conference will be held on
April 26, 2012. Proposals are due by May 11, 2012 at noon. The Master Broker/Real Estate
Consultant will work collaboratively with the FMERA staff to help market, sell and lease the former
Fort Monmouth property. Mr. Harrison concluded by stating that FMERA hopes to bring a
recommendation to the Board for their consideration in June.

Bruce Steadman then provided an update on the land use regulations. Mr. Steadman stated that
Authority staff has been working with the Attorney General’s Office, the Authority’s Outside Counsel,
and Phillips Preiss Grygiel (PPG), the Authority’s Planning Consultant to draft the land use regulations
for the former Fort Monmouth property. PPG is finalizing the land use regulations, with input from
these parties. It is anticipated that the regulations will be discussed at the June FMERA Board
Meeting. Establishing land use regulations for the former Fort Monmouth property will create greater
transparency and clarity in the redevelopment process.

Mzr. Steadman concluded by stating FMERA’s action items.

e Continued work with Matrix Design Group and the N.J. Department of Environmental
Protection to identify environmental issues of concern

e Continued work on the Notice of Interest (NOI) evaluation process

e FMERA anticipates issuing Requests for Offer to Purchase (RFOTP) for Parcel C (mixed use),
C-1 (housing), Golf Course (golf course and related uses) and Howard Commons (housing) as
soon as the Master Broker/Real Estate Consultant has been selected

¢ Continued meetings and tours with the interested prospective employers and investors

e Continued outreach to our stakeholders

e Continued collaboration with our Trenton office on marketing and business development
opportunities



In response to Mr. Mahedy’s comments, Mr. Steadman defined a Finding of Suitability to Transfer
(FOST). Mr. Steadman stated that the U.S. Army cannot transfer a parcel without a FOST. A FOST
documents any environmental matters associated with a particular property and notes the history of the
issue. The NJDEP reviews each FOST and the public has an opportunity to comment on each FOST.
The public comment period for the Parcel E FOST ends on May 6™ and the FOST is posted on the U.S.
Army’s website.

Mr. Steadman also stated that work continues on a University Park concept for Fort Monmouth and he
is hopeful that a Request for Proposals will be issued in the June timeframe.

Mayor Tarantolo asked if FMERA forfeits money from the federal government that it currently
receives to lease its office space, once it moves on the Post into a federally owned building.

Mr. Steadman stated that the Office of Economic Adjustment (OEA) has let the Authority know that it
will not fund rent for premises off the Post past the summer. Mr. Steadman stated that OEA prefers
that Local Redevelopment Authorities (LR As) work in a building on Post. Once FMERA moves to the

Fort, the rent line item of the budget is eliminated, and the funds may not be used for any other
expense.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

a) AUDIT COMMITTEE (MICHAEL MAHON, ACTING CHAIRMAN):

Acting Chairman Michael Mahon stated that the Committee has not met since the last board meeting
and plans to meet in May.

b) REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE (JAMES V. GORMAN, ACTING CHAIRMAN):

Acting Chairman James V. Gorman stated that the members discussed the Parcel E Purchase and Sale
Agreement (PSA) with CommVault, at length. In particular, they discussed the penalties to
CommVault for failure to create the number of new jobs to New Jersey that CommVault has
committed to, and failure to complete the improvements for their new world headquarters facilities
within the agreed upon timeline. After the discussion of these points, and the PSA overall, the

committee members agreed to recommend approval of the PSA to the FMERA Board of Directors at
tonight’s Board meeting.

Next, there was a brief discussion on the AcuteCare lease/purchase agreement. Staff recommended
that a decision on the AcuteCare agreement be postponed until the May meeting, subject to receipt of
the pending Army to FMERA lease on that property.

The Committee then discussed the final working draft of the Memorandum Of Agreement (MOA) with
the Army. This is the third and final working draft to be reviewed by the Committee. The members
discussed several of the minor changes to the MOA since the last working draft was reviewed in

December. The members agreed to recommend approval of the MOA to the Board at tonight’s Board
meeting.



Staff updated the members on the status of the land use regulations that have been drafted by
FMERA'’s planning consultant, Phillips Preiss Grygiel LLC (PPG). The draft regulations are being
reviewed by outside counsel and the AG Office. The members requested an update on the regulations
from PPG and outside counsel at the May Committee. It is hoped that the regulations could be

reviewed by the Committee at its June meeting with a recommendation to the Board for approval at the
June Board meeting.

Staff updated the members on the status of the Master Broker / Real Estate Consultant RFP. The
notice was published last week, the mandatory pre-bid conference will be held this week, and formal
proposals are due May 11. It is anticipated that the Master Broker will be retained by the end of June,
and that the first project that the Master Broker will work on will be the RFOTP for Parcels C, C1,
Golf Course, and Howard Commons.

The members of the Committee were briefed on the status of the University Park RFP, including
possible concept site plans. It is hoped that the first phase of a 2-phase RFP process will begin in June.
The several involved parties within and outside of state government continue to work on this exciting
and very worthwhile project.

The members were briefed on a recent Department of Defense (DOD) publication that showed a $17
million environmental budget for remaining environmental work at Fort Monmouth ($29 million has
been spent to date). The experience of our environmental consultant, Matrix, with such budgets is that
the amount of money is a placeholder, but remains fluid subject to more accurate forecasts as projects
move forward. But, it is recognized that DOD does see significant environmental work still to be

completed at Fort Monmouth which, when completed, should enhance and improve FMERA’s ability
to market and sell the property.

c) ENVIRONMENTAL STAFF ADVISORY COMMITTEE (DAVID SWEENEY - NJDEP):

David Sweeney stated that Ken Kloo, NJDEP’s Director of the Site Remediation Program, will be the

Chairman of the Environmental Staff Advisory Committee and represent NJDEP on the FMERA
Board of Directors.

Mr. Sweeney continued by stating that the Committee met on April 16th and the Committee discussed
the FOST for Parcel E. NJDEP is reviewing the Army’s FOST for Parcel E and the public can
comment on the FOST until May 6, 2012 on the Army’s website. The Committee Members raised an
issue about sampling of the stream traversing Parcel 28 (part of Parcel E). Mr. Sweeney stated that no
areas of concern were identified on Parcel 28; therefore there is no basis for investigating potential
discharges of the stream. Further investigation of the stream may, however, be required relative to the
other parcels or discharges.

The Committee also discussed the restriction on groundwater use in the FOST, precluding future use
for drinkable purposes. Members questioned the need for a Classification Exception Area (CEA)
imposed by NJDEP. The use restriction in the FOST is essentially a contractual agreement between the
the Army and FMERA, whereas the approval of a CEA is a formal regulatory process which restricts
the use of groundwater for a particular use. A party cannot elect to establish a CEA. The remediating
party proposes a CEA, but it is the NJDEP that imposes the restriction, and it is only imposed when
contamination is present above a regulatory standard.




Bruce Steadman asked David Sweeney to clarify that the CEA designation was not required for Parcel

E. Mr. Sweeney stated that Mr. Steadman is correct and the CEA designation does not apply to Parcel
E.

d) HISTORICAL PRESERVATION STAFF ADVISORY COMMITTEE (BRUCE
STEADMAN, FMERA):

Bruce Steadman noted that the Committee did not meet this month, but that he anticipates having a
series of meetings once FMERA’s focus shifts from the Charles Wood Area to the Main Post.

e) HOUSING STAFF ADVISORY COMMITTEE (CHARLES RICHMAN, DCA):

Chuck Richman noted that the Committee did not meet in the last month, but will be meeting
sometime in early May to review the municipal comments to the proposed plan amendment and to
make a recommendation on those comments to the Real Estate Committee.

f) VETERANS STAFF ADVISORY COMMITTEE (FREEHOLDER LILLIAN BURRY):

Lillian Burry stated that she has nothing new to report regarding the Committee’s efforts to create a
veterans housing facility on Fort Monmouth, but that work is progressing.

VIII. Board Actions

The next item before the Board was the Consideration of Approval of the Revised Memorandum
of Agreement (MOA) with the U.S. Army.

Bruce Steadman read the resolution which is attached hereto and marked Exhibit 1.

A motion was made to approve by MAYOR TARANTOLO, and was seconded by FREEHOLDER
BURRY.

Mayor Tarantolo asked about the 12 expense categories in the MOA in which money from the sales

and lease proceeds may be invested. Mayor Tarantolo asked for the term public buildings/facilities to
be defined.

Mr. Steadman stated that the Mayor is referring to Article 5 Section A-1 in the MOA which states that
FMERA agrees that such payments that have been described will be reinvested in the Fort’s footprint
within the 12 expense categories, in accordance with BRAC law.

The Mayor then asked about the no cost transfers mentioned in the Board Memo (the Pool, the Teen
Center and the Early Childhood Center). The Mayor asked if money gained from sales and lease
proceeds can be used to improve the facilities that are being transferred at no cost.

Mr. Steadman stated that FMERA’s budget probably would not include funds to be reinvested into
those facilities as they are being transferred in an as is, where is condition. The reason that the U.S.
Army is allowing for a few facilities in Phase 1 to be transferred at no cost is because the U.S. Army
views those properties as having limited value for job creation potential, and may be used directly to




benefit the public. Typically, FMERA’s reinvestment of sales proceeds in the 12 expense categories
would be to enhance job creation opportunities, and not improve these public buildings.

Caren Franzini stated that the 12 expense categories are in BRAC law and are not determined by
FMERA.

Chairman Gorman further stated that money generated from the sale or lease of Fort property must be
reinvested back into the Fort footprint. It cannot be used for any other purpose.

Freeholder Burry stated that Monmouth County is committed to improving and enhancing the

infrastructure on Fort Monmouth. Ms. Burry stated that the County will be improving County Road
537 through Fort Monmouth.

Gerald Turning thanked the U.S. Army on behalf of Tinton Falls for the Early Childhood Center,
which will be used as a Tinton Falls school to assist special needs children.

Motion to Approve: MAYOR TARANTOLO Second: FREEHOLDER BURRY
AYes: 8

The next item before the Board was the Consideration of Approval of a Purchase-Sale Agreement
with CommVault for Parcel E.

Bruce Steadman read the resolution which is attached hereto and marked Exhibit 2.

A motion was made to approve by DR. ROBERT LUCKY, and was seconded by MAYOR
TARANTOLO.

Mayor Tarantolo asked about the P.I.L.O.T. between Tinton Falls and CommVault. Mayor Tarantolo
stated that Parcel E is currently not part of the municipality’s ratable base - therefore, how is Tinton
Falls able to offer a P.I.LL.O.T. DAG Chacon stated that the P.LL.O.T. is between Tinton Falls and
CommVault and does not involve FMERA. DAG Chacon further stated that Parcel E will become a
ratable of Tinton Falls once Parcel E is transferred and that the reason it is mentioned in the Board
Memo is because it is a condition of sale by CommVault. DAG Chacon stated that the Local
Redevelopment and Housing Law indicates how the P.LL.O.T. is to be done.

Bruce Steadman then stated that CommVault is publicly traded on the NASDAQ (CVLT), and
currently employs approximately 1,370 worldwide with approximately 500 employed in Oceanport,
New Jersey. If the Company is successful in acquiring the Property, CommVault proposes to construct
on the Property its worldwide headquarters consisting of up to 650,000 square feet of new high-tech

office/research technology space in one or more buildings with associated site improvements, which
will include a parking garage.

CommVault is presenting a transformative project that will provide benefits beyond the scope of its
footprint. When fully built out, CommVault has indicated that it will have 2,500 employees at the site,
up to 700 of which will be hired within three years after occupancy. The positive impact of a project of
this magnitude on Fort Monmouth, and the surrounding area which lost 5,000 jobs at the Fort and
thousands of other supporting jobs when the Army closed the base, will be significant. This became a

job retention project for the State, when it became apparent that CommVault was considering several
relocation sites, including some out-of-state.

8



The purchase-sale agreement includes penalties to CommVault for failure to create the number of new
jobs to New Jersey that CommVault has committed to, and failure to complete the improvements for
their new world headquarters facilities within the agreed upon timeline. The Real Estate Committee
has reviewed the purchase-sale agreement and recommends it to the full Board for approval.

Motion to Approve: DR. ROBERT LUCKY Second: MAYOR TARANTOLO
AYes: 7 No: 1

Mayor Mahon voted no.
IX. Other Items
There were no other items for discussion.

X. Public Comment

Anthony Talerico, Jr. of Eatontown asked David Sweeney about his comments earlier in the meeting
regarding upstream testing near Parcel E and how it relates to Wampum Lake. Mr. Sweeney said that
he would track down the answer to Mr. Talerico’s question and provide an answer to Mr. Steadman,
who will then convey the response to Mr. Talerico.

Chairman Gorman told Mr. Talerico that the Restoration Advisory Board (RAB) is the mechanism that
the local communities should use to work out environmental issues with the Army, particularly those
that relate to any possible contamination outside of the Fort Monmouth boundaries.

Tricia Murch of Ocean Township stated that she understands that Suneagles is open and operating and
that at the last meeting it was noted that there had not been a fire inspection done there. Ms. Murch is
concerned about who will be undertaking the permitting and inspection process of facilities on Fort
Monmouth. Ms. Murch feels that the municipalities are more than capable of undertaking the process
and does not understand why the Department of Community Affairs (DCA) needs to be involved.

Bruce Steadman stated that permits, zoning, certificates of occupancy, etc. will be a part of the land
use regulations and the process will be explained in a concise and straightforward manner. Mr.
Steadman further explained that there is a temporary “detour” from using the municipalities for these
services because the property is still owned by the federal government and under state control, and that
is why the DCA is being used in the short-term.

Mr. Harrison added that the Monmouth County Health Department has graciously agreed to conduct
health inspections for facilities in use on Fort Monmouth in the short-term. The DCA is handling fire

inspections, and in addition, the Army has brought a fire inspector on board as part of their caretaker
force.

Chuck Richman noted that the municipal construction fees only cover the Borough’s cost of operation.

The construction fees do not create a windfall for the Borough.

Mayor Mahon explained that meetings have been taking place with regard to inspections and there is a
coordinated effort.



Tom Mahedy asked about the underground water contamination on Parcel E.

Bruce Steadman stated that Mr. Mahedy is incorrect in his reference to the FOST, and that members of
the public can reference the FOST for Parcel E on the Army’s website to get the facts.

Mr. Mahedy asked for the amount of money that the State is promising to CommVault.

Mr. Steadman clarified that no one is “promising” money to CommVault. However, CommVault, just
as any other employer offering to invest millions of dollars and create hundreds of new jobs in New

Jersey, has access to the State’s incentive programs. CommVault has applied to the NJEDA for some
of these incentives.

Caren Franzini referred Mr. Mahedy to the NJEDA website where their board information is available
to the public. Ms. Franzini also noted that she would arrange for the pertinent board documents to be e-
mailed to Mr. Mahedy.

There being no further business, on a motion by Mayor Mahon, seconded by Dr. Robert Lucky and
unanimously approved by all voting members the meeting was adjourned at 8:35 pm.

Certification: The foregoing and attachments represent a true and complete
summary of the actions taken by the Fort Monmouth Economic Revitalization
Authority at its Board Meeting.

y/4 .

£
Iy

Bruce Steadman — Secretary

10



ADOPTED
April 24, 2012

Resolution Regarding the
Revised Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the U.S. Army

WHEREAS, the Legislature enacted the Fort Monmouth FEconomic
Revitalization Authority Act (“Act”), P.L. 2010, c. 51, to create the Fort Monmouth Economic
Revitalization Authority (“FMERA” or “Authority”); and

WHEREAS, section 2(a) of the Act states that “[t]he closure and revitalization of
Fort Monmouth is a matter of great concern for the host municipalities of Eatontown, Oceanport,
and Tinton Falls; for Monmouth County; and for the State of New Jersey”’; and

WHEREAS, in section 9(b) of the Act, the Authority is given the power, “[a]s
designated and empowered as the ‘local redevelopment authority’ for Fort Monmouth for all
purposes of the Defense Base Closure and Realignment Act of 1990, Pub.L.101-510 (10 U.S.C. §
2687), and, in that capacity, to enter into agreements with the federal government, State
departments, agencies or authorities, the county, the host municipalities, or private parties;” and

WHEREAS, in section 9(e) of the Act, the Authority is empowered “[t]o acquire
or contract to acquire . . . the project area”; and

WHEREAS, Fort Monmouth closed on September 15, 2011; and
WHEREAS, the U.S. Army owns the Fort Monmouth property; and

WHEREAS, the MOA contains the binding terms of the Economic Development
Conveyance of certain Fort Monmouth property by the U.S. Army to FMERA; and

WHEREAS, at the December 21, 2011 Meeting of the Authority, the Board of
Directors approved the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the U.S. Army and the

Economic Development Conveyance (EDC) application; and

WHEREAS, following the Board of Directors’ approval of the MOA in
December negotiations between the U.S. Army and FMERA staff continued; and

WHEREAS, the MOA was revised to reflect the continued negotiations; and

WHEREAS, no substantive changes have been made to the EDC application,
other than to reflect the changes to the MOA; and

WHEREAS, the Redl Estate Committée reviewed the revised MOA and
recommends it to the full Board of Directors for approval.



THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The Authority approves the MOA with the U.S. Army, on terms

- substantially consistent as those set forth in the attached memorandum and MOA with final

terms acceptable to the Executive Director and the Attorney General’s Office, and authorizes the
Chairman of the Authority or the Executive Director to execute the document.

2. This resolution shall take effect immediately, but no action authorized
herein shall have force and effect until 10 days, Saturdays, Sundays, and public holidays

excepted, after a copy of the minutes of the Authority meeting at which this resolution was
adopted has been delivered to the Governor of the State of New Jersey for his approval, unless
during such 10-day period the Governor of the State of New Jersey shall approve the same, in
which case such action shall become effective upon such approval, as provided by the Act.

Dated: April 24, 2012 EXHIBIT 1
ATTACHMENTS



ADOPTED
April 24, 2012

Resolution Regarding the
Authorization for
the Fort Monmouth Economic Redevelopment Authority (FMERA)
to Enter into a Purchase-Sale Agreement
with CommVault for Parcel E

WHEREAS, the Legislature enacted the Fort Monmouth Economic

Revitalization Authority Act (Act™), P.L. 2010, c. 51, to create the Fort Monmouth Economic

Revitalization Authority (“FMERA” or “Authority”); and
WHEREAS, the U.S. Army closed Fort Monmouth on September 15, 2011; and
WHEREAS, the U.S. Army is the owner of the Fort Monmouth Property; and

WHEREAS, in an effort to earn early proceeds, the Army has allowed for a 55

acre parcel in the Tinton Falls section of Fort Monmouth to be publically advertised for
purchase; and

WHEREAS, on October 13, 2011 FMERA issued and publically advertised its
first Request for Offers to Purchase (RFOTP) for Parcel E in accordance with the Authority’s
Rules for the Sale of Real and Personal Property; and

WHEREAS, four proposals were received: one offer was for commercial
development and three were for residential development; and

WHEREAS, all proposals were scored independently by an evaluation
committee; and

WHEREAS, CommVault received the highest score; and

WHEREAS, as provided in the Authority’s Rules for the Sale of Real and
Personal Property, the FMERA Staff determined during the evaluation process of the proposals
received that there was a high likelihood that negotiating with CommVault will lead to an
acceptable sales contract between FMERA and CommVault; and

WHEREAS, at the February Meeting of the Authority the Board of Directors
authorized FMERA to enter in to exclusive negotiations with CommVault, in accordance with
the Authority’s Sales Rules; and

WHEREAS, on March 20, 2012 CommVault executed the Exclusive
Negotiations Agreement and provided an additional 10% deposit in accordance with the
Authority’s Sales Rules; and




WHEREAS, the exclusive negotiations have resulted in the attached purchase-
sale agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Real Estate Committee has reviewed the attached purchase-sale
agreement and recommends it to the full Board of Directors for approval.

THEREFORE BE IT I

1. The Authority approves the selection of CommVault as the purchaser of
Parcel E in the Tinton Falls Section of the former Fort Monmouth property pursuant to the
October 13, 2011 Request for Offers to Purchase, on terms substantially consistent to those set
forth in the attached memorandum and the attached purchase-sale agreement and with final terms
acceptable to the Executive Director and the Attorney General’s Office, and authorizes the
Executive Director to execute the agreement and take any necessary actions to effectuate the
selection of CommVault as the purchaser of Parcel E.

2. This resolution shall take effect immediately, but no action authorized
herein shall have force and effect until 10 days, Saturdays, Sundays, and public holidays
excepted, after a copy of the minutes of the Authority meeting at which this resolution was
adopted has been delivered to the Governor of the State of New Jersey for his approval, unless
during such 10-day period the Governor of the State of New Jersey shall approve the same, in
which case such action shall become effective upon such approval, as provided by the Act.

Dated: April 24,2012 EXHIBIT 2
ATTACHMENTS



TO:

FROM

DATE:

MEMORANDUM

Members of the Board of Directors

: Bruce Steadman
Executive Director

May 16, 2012

SUBJECT:  Monthly Status Report

Summary

The following are brief descriptions of the Fort Monmouth Economic Revitalization Authority
(FMERA) staff’s monthly activities which include an Update on the Status of the Federal Grant
and FMERA Financials; Update on Meetings with Army Representatives; Update on Proposed
Plan Amendment Process; Update on FMERA Office Move to Fort Monmouth; Update on

Master

Broker/Real Estate Consultant Request for Proposals; Update on Land Use Regulations

and Action Items for Next Month.

Treasurer’s Report.

Federal Grant Status
1. Grant Request.

The Authority’s grant request for funds in support of the Authority’s operations is under
review by the technical review committee of the Office of Economic Adjustment (OEA).
The funds requested from the OEA are consistent with the budget approved by the
Authority’s Board for fiscal year 2012 and presented to the State’s Office of Management
and Budget, in support of the Authority’s appropriation request for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2013.

2011 Comprehensive Annual Report of the Authority.

The Authority’s independent accounting firm has completed the 2011 audit, and reported
their findings to the Audit Committee at the May 8, 2012 meeting of the Committee. The
auditors issued an unqualified opinion with regard to the Authority’s 2011 financial
statements. Staff also presented the Authority’s 2011 Annual Report to the Committee.
The Annual Report and the audited financial statements serve as FMERA’s
comprehensive annual report to meet the requirements of Executive Order No. 37 (2006).

Based on the Audit Committee’s review of the 2011 Comprehensive Annual Report, the
Committee recommended the presentation of 2011 Comprehensive Annual Report for
Member’s approval at the May 16, 2012 Board meeting.




3.

Budget.
Spending continues to be strictly monitored.

Executive Director’s Report.

1.

Update on Meetings with Army Representatives.

After fifteen months of discussion and negotiation, and the FMERA Board’s approval of
the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) at last month’s meeting of the Authority,
FMERA and the Army will execute the long-awaited MOA on May 17, 2012. This is a
great milestone for FMERA, and paves the way for the first transfers of property to

begin.

The MOA‘covers the Phase 1 property: Charles Wood, plus three parcels on the Main
Post. FMERA anticipates taking title to the first parcel on Charles Wood by June 2012,
and the last of the Phase 1 parcels by the end of June 2013.

Next month, FMERA and the Army will begin discussions on the future transfer of the
balance of the Main Post, under the Phase 2 MOA.

Update on Proposed Plan Amendment Process.

The FMERA staff met with representatives from Eatontown, Oceanport and Tinton Falls
on March 8, 2012 to officially transmit the proposed plan amendment and to discuss the
45 day review period. The proposed amendment to the Fort Monmouth Reuse and
Redevelopment Plan would allow, as an alternative, commercial development on Parcel
E while moving the housing that was proposed on Parcel E in the Reuse and
Redevelopment Plan to other areas of the Tinton Falls section of the former Fort
Monmouth property. The 45 day review period expired on April 23, 2012. In
accordance with the FMERA Act, each host municipality may provide a report with
comments on the proposed plan amendment within the 45 day review period. The
proposed plan amendment and the reports received from the municipalities are being
brought to the FMERA Board of Directors for consideration at this month’s meeting of
the Authority.

Update on FMERA Office Move to Fort Monmouth.

FMERA issued a publically advertised Design-Build Request for Proposals on March 29,
2012 for Building 502, the former Post Library, on the former Fort Monmouth property.
A mandatory site visit was held on April 5, 2012 and a mandatory pre-proposal
conference was held at the FMERA Office on April 9, 2012. Proposals were due by
April 27, 2012 at noon and 11 were received. FMERA will conduct interviews with the
three highest scoring bidders, and make a recommendation to the Board. Building 502
will be converted into office space that the Authority hopes to occupy at the end of the
summer. When the Authority office moves to the former Fort Monmouth property, there
will be a system in place to provide the public with access to the office.




Update on Master Broker/Real Estate Consultant Request for Proposals.

FMERA issued a publically advertised Request for Proposals for a Master Broker/Real
Estate Consultant on Monday, April 16, 2012. A mandatory pre-proposal conference was
held on April 26, 2012. Proposals were due by May 11, 2012 at noon. The Master
Broker/Real Estate Consultant will work collaboratively with the FMERA staff to help
market, sell and lease the former Fort Monmouth property. FMERA staff hopes to bring
a recommendation for approval to the Board of Directors at the June Meeting of the
Authority.

Update on Land Use Regulations.

Authority staff has been working with the New Jersey Attorney General’s Office, the
Authority’s Outside Counsel, and Phillips Preiss Grygiel (PPG), the Authority’s Planning
Consultant to draft the land use regulations for the former Fort Monmouth property. PPG
is finalizing the land use regulations, with input from these parties, and drafts continue to
be circulated. It is anticipated that the regulations will be discussed at the June FMERA
Board Meeting. Establishing land use regulations for the former Fort Monmouth property
will create greater transparency and clarity in the redevelopment process.

Action Items for Next Month.

Continued work with Matrix Design Group and the N.J. Department of Environmental
Protection to identify environmental issues of concern

Continued work on the Notice of Interest (NOI) evaluation process

FMERA anticipates issuing Requests for Offer to Purchase (RFOTP) for Parcel C (mixed
use), C-1 (housing), Golf Course (golf course and related uses) and Howard Commons
(housing) as soon as the Master Broker/Real Estate Consultant has been selected
Continued meetings and tours with interested prospective employers and investors
Continued outreach to our stakeholders

Continued collaboration with our Trenton office on marketing and business development
opportunities

Continued work on a University Park Concept




Prepared by: Katie Hodes

A roved BY: Bruce Steadman



ADOPTED
May 16, 2012

Resolution Regarding the
Approval of First Plan Amendment Permitting Alternative Development
Scenario in Tinton Falls

WHEREAS, the Legislature enacted the Fort Monmouth Economic
Revitalization Authority Act (“Act”), P.L. 2010, c. 51, to create the Fort Monmouth Economic
Revitalization Authority (“FMERA” or “Authority”); and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Army closed Fort Monmouth on September 15, 2011; and

WHEREAS, the FMERA Act, in N.J.S.A. 52:271-26(c), authorizes FMERA “to
adopt, revise, adjust, and implement . . . any aspect of the plan” and the Plan states that it is
intended to “continue to evolve”; and

WHEREAS, the process set forth in the FMERA Act, in N.J.S.A. 52:271-35,
requires transmitting any proposed plan amendment to the governing body of each of the three
municipalities for a 45-day comment period and then to consider any comments prior to the
Board approving or disapproving the amendment; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the FMERA Act the FMERA Board approved
transmitting the proposed plan amendment #1 to the host municipalities at its February 15, 2012
meeting; and

WHEREAS, on March 8, 2012 the host municipalities received the proposed
plan amendment, starting the 45-day comment period; and

WHEREAS, the 45-day comment period expired on April 23, 2012 and reports
were received from Oceanport and Eatontown; and

WHEREAS, although the reports did not contain specific recommendations, they
were reviewed by the Real Estate Committee, the Housing Staff Advisory Committee and
FMERA staff; and

WHEREAS, the Members have reviewed the reports from Oceanport and
Eatontown and wish to adopt proposed plan amendment #1 to the Fort Monmouth Reuse and
Redevelopment Plan.



THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. As expressed in the attached board memorandum, the Authority
approves the first plan amendment permitting alternative development scenario in Tinton
Falls.

2. This resolution shall take effect immediately, but no action authorized
herein shall have force and effect until 10 days, Saturdays, Sundays, and public holidays
excepted, after a copy of the minutes of the Authority meeting at which this resolution was
adopted has been delivered to the Governor of the State of New Jersey for his approval, unless
during such 10-day period the Governor of the State of New Jersey shall approve the same, in

L Gpps e 111

which case such action shall become effective upon such approval, as provided by the Act.

Dated: May 16, 2012 EXHIBIT 1
ATTACHMENT



THE TN
FORTm%

MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the Board of Directors
FROM: Bruce Steadman
Executive Director
RE: Consideration of Approval of First Plan Amendment Permitting Alternative
Development Scenario in Tinton Falls
DATE: May 16, 2012
Request

I am requesting that the Board of Directors consider approving Amendment #1 to the Fort
Monmouth Reuse and Revitalization Plan, which would permit an alternative development
scenario in Tinton Falls to include professional office/R&D space on Parcel E, a 55-acre parcel
in the northeast quadrant of the Tinton Falls Fort Monmouth area, while preserving the same
total number of housing units in the Tinton Falls Fort Monmouth area.

Background
Governor Christie signed P.L. 2010, c. 51 on August 17, 2010 to create the Fort Monmouth

Economic Revitalization Authority (FMERA). The economies, environment, and quality of life
of the host municipalities, Monmouth County, and the State will benefit from the efficient,
coordinated, and comprehensive redevelopment and revitalization of Fort Monmouth.

FMERA’s predecessor authority, the Fort Monmouth Economic Revitalization Planning
Authority created and developed the Fort Monmouth Reuse and Redevelopment (the Plan). The
Plan was completed in 2008 after years of careful consideration and under economic conditions
that were different from today.

The FMERA Act, and the Reuse Plan itself, contemplate that amendments to the Plan would be
required from time to time. Specifically, the FMERA Act authorizes FMERA “to adopt, revise,
adjust, and implement . . . any aspect of the plan. . .” Moreover, the Plan states that it is intended
to “continue to evolve.” Plan amendments will allow FMERA to respond to opportunities that
arise once parcels are publicly advertised for sale and that further FMERA’s purpose and
responsibilities.

In accordance with the relevant FMERA Act statute, the Reuse Plan is required to be “a report or
statement and land use and development proposals” that includes:

(1) A statement of objectives, assumptions, and standards on which the plan is based;
(2) The relationship to Statewide, county and municipal planning objectives;
3) Proposed land uses; and



4 Any significant relationship to municipal and county plans as well as the State
Development Redevelopment Plan.

The attached proposed Amendment #1, prepared by FMERA'’s professional planners, Phillips
Preiss Grygiel (PPG), encompasses the Fort Monmouth area within Tinton Falls (the Tinton Falls
Reuse Area), which totals approximately 254 acres. The existing Plan envisions redevelopment
of this area for approximately one million square feet of non-residential space and 288 residential
units. Such development is to include a high-tech business campus with a multi-use town center
containing ground-floor retail space with mixed-income housing or professional offices above,
and standalone residential, institutional and civic uses.

Amendment #1 maintains the Plan’s planning objectives and principles, such as job creation,
economic development, and the provision of a mix of housing. Amendment #1 would permit an
alternative development scenario for the Tinton Falls Reuse Area that, if pursued, would result in
the development of 650,000 square feet of professional office/R&D space on Parcel E, a 55-acre
parcel in the northeast quadrant of the Tinton Falls Reuse Area, while preserving the same total
number of housing units in the Tinton Falls Reuse Area. Thus, under the alternative development
contained in Amendment #1, the total number of residential units within the Tinton Falls
Reuse Area would remain at 288; the 126 residential units envisioned in the Plan for Parcel E
would be redistributed to other locations within the Tinton Falls Reuse Area. The alternative
housing scenario under Amendment #1 would still provide a mix of housing types allowing for
mixed-income housing; the alternative commercial development for Parcel E in Amendment #1
would allow for the commercial use proposed by CommVault in response to the publically
advertised Request for Offer to Purchase for Parcel E.

On February 15, 2012, the FMERA Board approved due diligence guidelines to assist the Board
in making an informed decision about any proposed Plan amendment, revision, or supplement.
The guidelines state that, prior to its final approval of any Plan change, the Board will seek
certain information from its professional planners and outside counsel. The guidelines do not
require affirmative statements or opinions, but, rather, the statements or opinions are intended to
guide the Board in its decision making. With regard to the plan resulting from the incorporation
of Amendment #1, the Board has received:

(1) A statement from PPG that the resulting plan is a rational and coordinated plan.

2) A statement from PPG that the resulting plan does not significantly impact the areas
within Fort Monmouth of the other host municipalities. [#1 and #2 are addressed by
PPG in one statement.]

3) An opinion of outside counsel that the resulting plan does not negatively impact
FMERA'’s obligations under federal Base Closure and Realignment (BRAC) law or
under any Agreement with the Army.

4) An opinion of outside counsel that the resulting plan does not negatively impact
FMERA'’s obligations under fair housing laws. ,




In accordance with the FMERA Act, the FMERA Board also approved on February 15, 2012 the
transmittal of Amendment #1 to the governing body of each host municipality for a 45-day
comment period. The municipalities received Amendment #1 on March 8, 2012; the comment
period ended April 23, 2012. Tinton Falls did not provide any comments; the correspondence
received from Eatontown and Tinton Falls are attached. The letter from Eatontown’s Borough
Administrator states that the Eatontown Planning Board passed a resolution recommending the
approval of Amendment #1 and that the Eatontown governing body had no objections.
Oceanport’s comment stated that Amendment #1 was reviewed by the mayor and council,
planning board, citizens advisory committee, fire department, first aid squad, police department,
office of emergency management, borough planner, and borough engineer and indicated that no
concerns were raised as to infrastructure or by emergency services but that the planning board,
governing body, and professionals expressed the concern that jobs were being moved from one
host community to another.

Additionally, on February 27, 2012, FMERA’s Housing Staff Advisory Committee met with
PPG to discuss Amendment #1. At the March 21, 2012 meeting, the FMERA Board was
provided an oral report on that Committee meeting. The Board was informed that the Committee
discussed the viability of building the 288 housing units in the Tinton Falls Reuse Area outside
of Parcel E and that there is sufficient potential to have the 20% affordable housing set aside if
housing is developed under Amendment #1. The Board was also told that the Committee
discussed the impact of having the creation of jobs as the first priority and how this creates a
greater demand for housing. The Housing Staff Advisory Committee met on May 10, 2012. The
Committee reviewed and discussed the comment reports from Eatontown and Oceanport
regarding Amendment #1.

Having reviewed and considered the comments from the host municipalities, and comments from
the Housing Staff Advisory Committee, and other public comments, Staff recommends that the
Board approve Amendment #1. With regards to the host municipalities, no specific
recommendations were received; the only comment was the concern expressed by Oceanport
regarding CommVault. While the concern does not address the substance of Amendment #1, in
response it should be noted that CommVault made the decision to relocate from Oceanport on its
own and had considered out-of-state sites. As for public comments expressing a concern about
achieving the balance of uses contemplated in the Plan and Amendment #1, the FMERA Board
has approved issuing Requests for Offers to Purchase for various parcels that contain housing,
including parcels within the Tinton Falls Reuse Area. To do so in accordance with U.S. Army
requirements, on April 16, 2012 FMERA issued a Request for Proposals for Master Broker
Services, such as assistance with the marketing and selling of facilities and property.

FMERA'’s Real Estate Committee reviewed the proposed plan amendment, and the comment
reports received from Eatontown and Oceanport, and recommends the plan amendment
permitting an alternative development scenario in Tinton Falls to the full Board of Directors for
approval.



Recommendation

In summary, I recommend that the Board of Directors approve the proposed Amendment #1 to
the Fort Monmouth Reuse and Revitalization Plan Amendment that would permit an alternative
development scenario in Tinton Falls.

/ &A/'Al“ Ly

¢ Steadman

ATTACHMENT: Correspondence from the Borough of Eatontown
Correspondence from the Borough of Oceanport
Proposed Amendment #1
Opinions

Prepared by: Bruce Steadman



DRAFT

Proposed Amendment #1 to the
Fort Monmouth Reuse and Redevelopment Plan

Prepared for:
The Fort Monmouth Economic Revitalization Authority

By:

Phillips Preiss Grygiel LLC
Planning and Real Estate Consultants
33-41 Newark Street
Hoboken, NJ 07030

February 2012



.Table of Contents

I. Introduction and Planning Rationale ........ccccceiviiiiiiii e cevsserr v vrsrsesssesssnesenessneens 2
ll. Scope of Reuse Plan AMendment.........ccccvrccieiisccmenssicnsssssseesesssssesssssssesmssensssnnens 4

lll. Relationship to Elements, Objectives and Principles of the Reuse Plan and

FIVIERA Dir€CIVE wecvviiieiiiiciiirerie s s r s s s s e s ssn s v sasn e s s s mn e e s smme e s smmsene e s snnmnnns 7
Relationship to Reuse and Redevelopment Plan Elements ...........ccccovveieieeniinnnnne. 7
Relationship to Objectives and Principles of the Reuse Plan........cccccovuveeeeveennnennn. 14
Relationship t0 FMERA DiIr€CHVE ........uuuviiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e ee e e 16

IV. Relationship to State, County and Municipal Planning Objectives ................. 17
State Development and Redevelopment Plan (SDRP) ........ccccccvvvvieeeiiviicnenens v 17
Monmouth County Open Space Plan ...........oooooeieiieee e 17
Tinton Falls Master Plan ...t 18
Tinton Falls ZONING ..ccoiiiiieis e e e e e e e e e e ee e e e ee e 18

VR 0o 4 T 111 e o 19

List of Tables

Table 1: Reuse & Redevelopment Program ... e 7

Table 2: Non-Residential Building Reuse Index if Amendment #1 Pursued...................... 8

Table 3: Residential Building Reuse Index if Amendment #1 Pursued.........ccoeeeeeeveennnene. 8

Table 4: Breakdown of Housing Types in Tinton Falls.........cccccoviiiei e, 14

List of Figures
Figure 1: Alternative Scenario for Parcel E in the Tinton Falls Reuse Area...................... 6



l. Introduction and Planning Rationale

Pursuant to P.L.2010, c. 10 (N.J.S.A. 52:271-18 et. seq.), the Fort Monmouth Economic
Revitalization Authority (“FMERA”) is considering amending the Fort Monmouth Reuse
and Redevelopment Plan (the “Reuse Plan”’ and “Plan”) to provide the option for devel-
opment of professional office and/or research and development (R&D) space on a 55-
acre parcel (“Parcel E”) located in the northeast section of the former Fort Monmouth

property in the Borough of Tinton Falls, New Jersey. FMERA must determine whether

AV RVAV] SiSTy HUSL UT

the alternative development scenario is generally consistent with the overall plannin

T LTV i~ H i " [N

principles and objectives of the Reuse Plan.

The proposed amendment does not purport to delete any provisions of the Reuse Plan
but rather would supplement the Plan by proposing an alternative development scenario
for the 55-acre parcel cited above. The amendment would ultimately be incorporated into
the Land Use Regulations for the Reuse Area in a manner similar to an “overlay zone,”
whereby an additional set of requirements are superimposed on the area allowing for
such alternative development scenario to be realized. Overlay zoning would provide ad-
ditional opportunities for development which would not apply unless the land is devel-
oped in accordance with the purposes for which the overlay zoning was adopted.

The Fort Monmouth properties in Tinton Falls (“the Reuse Area”) total approximately 254
acres and are bounded generally by Pearl Harbor Avenue to the west, Tinton Avenue to
the north, Hope Road to the east and Pinebrook Road and the Conrail railroad tracks to
the south. The Reuse Plan envisions redevelopment of this area for approximately one
million square feet of non-residential space and 288 residential units. Such development
would include a high-tech business campus with a multi-use town center containing
ground-floor retail space with mixed-income housing or professional offices above, and
standalone residential, institutional and civic uses. Specifically, Parcel E is planned for
low- and medium-density housing totaling 126 units, together with ball fields and a field
house, and three neighborhood pocket parks.

This amendment, referred to as Amendment #1, maintains the land use concepts and
plans articulated in the Reuse Plan but also permits an alternative development scenario
that, if pursued, would result in the development of 650,000 square feet of professional
office/R&D space on Parcel E. Under this alternative, the total number of residential
units would remain at 288, however the 126 residential units envisioned for Parcel E
would be redistributed to other locations within the Tinton Falls Reuse Area.

This amendment is consistent with the planning objectives and principles articulated in
the Reuse Plan and is necessary to fulfill the Authority’s main objectives—specifically job
creation, economic development and the provision of housing. The real estate market
has taken a turn for the worse since the Reuse Plan was prepared and this downturn




has been compounded by the actual closure of Fort Monmouth, which has resulted in
the loss of 5,000 jobs on the base and 15,000 supporting jobs in the region. The im-
pacts associated with the base closure relative to the local property tax base and local
and regional employment will continue to be felt so long as the former Fort properties
remain fallow and unproductive.

A significant change has occurred since the preparation of the Reuse Plan that directly
affects the Tinton Falls Reuse Area: plans by the New Jersey Turnpike Authority to re-
configure Exit 105 of the Garden State Parkway. These improvements will remove traffic
from the Hope Road/Route 36 intersection and provide additional access to Pearl Harbor
Avenue, Tinton Avenue and Route 18. The Reuse Plan placed limitations on density and
types of land uses in those areas of the Tinton Falls Reuse Area that would be served by
the local roadway system. As a result of the Exit 105 improvements, the Tinton Falls
Reuse Area will be positioned to accommodate higher-traffic generating uses, i.e., of-
fice/research uses (and at higher development intensities) than originally envisioned.
Furthermore, this new access will, in all likelihood, render certain land parcels more de-
sirable for office/R&D use than was contemplated during the Plan preparation stage.

The Fort Monmouth Reuse and Redevelopment Plan involved years of careful consid-
eration and study as well as an extensive effort to draw input from local residents, the
three host municipalities and the County, State and Federal government. As such, this
amendment does not change the underlying Plan vision for the Tinton Falls Reuse Area.
Instead, it provides an alternative development scenario that affords FMERA with the
necessary flexibility to respond to changed circumstances in a manner that does not
compromise overall Reuse Plan goals and objectives.

The following chapter describes the nature and scope of the amendment, while succeed-
ing chapters discuss its relationship to the elements, objectives and planning principals
of the Fort Monmouth Reuse and Redevelopment Plan, as well as to FMERA's own di-
rective, and to relevant State, County and municipal planning objectives.



ll. Scope of Reuse Plan Amendment

This amendment to the Reuse Plan is intended to allow for an alternative development
concept for approximately 55 acres, referred to as Parcel E, in the Tinton Falls Reuse
Area. The Tinton Falls Reuse Area is bound generally by Pearl Harbor Avenue to the
west, Tinton Avenue to the north, Hope Road to the east and Pinebrook Road and the
Conrail railroad tracks to the south.

Parcel E is located in the northeast quadrant of the Reuse Area and is bounded on the
north by Tinton Avenue; on the east by three single-family residential parcels and Hope
Road; on the south by Corregidor Road and Building 2290 (formerly used as a Child De-
velopment Center); and on the west by Bataan Avenue. Parcel E is located adjacent to
the intersection of Tinton Avenue and Hope Road. Convenient access to the parcel is
currently provided via one of two gated entrances: on Bataan Avenue off of Tinton Ave-
nue (the “Bataan Gate”) and on Corregidor Road off of Hope Road.

The Reuse Plan envisions redevelopment of the Tinton Falls Reuse Area for approxi-
mately one million square feet of non-residential space and 288 residential units. Such
development would include a high-tech business campus, a multi-use town center con-
taining ground-floor retail space with mixed-income housing or professional offices
above, and standalone residential, institutional and civic uses. Under the Reuse Plan
Parcel E would be developed for 126 mixed-income residential units distributed as fol-
lows: 7 large-lot detached homes fronting on Tinton Avenue; reuse of 22 units of the ex-
tant Hemphill housing; 39 small-lot detached homes and 58 townhouses. The Reuse
Plan envisions Parcel E to also accommodate ball fields and a field house, and three
neighborhood pocket parks.

This amendment maintains the development concepts and plans articulated in the Re-
use Plan, but further permits an alternative development scenario that, if pursued, would
result in the development of up to three buildings totaling 650,000 square feet of profes-
sional office/R&D space on Parcel E. Under this alternative development scenario, the
total number of residential units within the Tinton Falls Reuse Area would remain at 288.
However, the 126 residential envisioned for Pareel E would be redistributed to other lo-
cations within the Tinton Falls Reuse Area as follows: 82 apartment units above ground-
floor retail space in the mixed-use town center; 90 mixed-income apartments to the east
of the town center and 33 townhouse units directly to the north; 34 small-lot detached
homes along Tinton Avenue between Parcel E and the town center; 36 townhouses to
the west of the existing pool and teen center and south of Laboratory Road; 8 large-lot
detached homes to the south of Laboratory Road and east of Park Road; and 5 small-lot
detached homes to the north of Laboratory Road (see Figure 1. Alternative Scenario for
Parcel E in the Tinton Falls Reuse Area).




The amendment would necessitate the removal of Buildings 2539 and 2540 south of La-
boratory Road. These buildings, which total approximately 16,000 square fest, are
shown in the “Building Reuse Plan” exhibit in the Reuse Plan as having potential (but not
required) for reuse as office/R&D space. The amendment would also require the re-
moval of 22 duplex units of the Hemphill Housing (Buildings 2231-2240, 2260) iocated
along Hemphill Road on the western side of Hope Road, east of Guam Lane and north
of Corregidor Road. These structures are not shown on the “Building Reuse Plan” exhibit
nor are they listed as buildings required for preservation in the Programmatic Agreement
between the New Jersey State Office of Historic Preservation (SHPO) and FMERA.



[J]
7]
3
o]
£
c
8
=
™
[a2]

5 Shaﬂ Lot
Detached

Homes

Figure 1
Alternat

Scenario for Parcel £ in the

Tinton Falls Reuse Area

Ve
PPG | 2012



lll. Relationship to Elements, Objectives and Principles
of the Reuse Plan and FMERA Directives

Relationship to Reuse and Redevelopment Plan Elements

In considering the impacts of the Reuse Plan amendment (i.e., to permit office/R&D uses
on Parcel E and redistribute 126 residential units to other locations in the Tinton Falls
Reuse Area), the following Reuse Plan elements were evaluated: land use and circula-
tion, infrastructure, environmental issues, historic preservation and community impacts.
The relationship between the amendment and these Plan elements are described below.

Land Use and Circulation

Total Development Yield

If the alternative development scenario that is part and parcel of this amendment is
pursued, it would result in the redevelopment of 650,000 square feet of new of-
fice/R&D space and a loss of ~16,000 square feet of existing office/R&D space in the
Tinton Falls Reuse Area." Thus, there would be a net increase of ~634,000 square
feet of non-residential square footage. The number of residential units would remain
at 288. The alternative development scenario, would result in revisions to the follow-
ing tables in the Reuse Plan: “Reuse & Redevelopment Program,” “Non-Residential
Building Reuse Index” and “Residential Building Reuse Index” as indicated in Tables
1 through 3 below.

Table 1: Reuse & Redevelopment Program

Tinton Falls | Tinton Falls SR> </ B8 Fort Total | Fort Total Grand
10 Year Plan 20 Year [ERERTIICHSEE 10 Year 20 Year Fort Total
Plan : Plan Plan
Existing R
Total Residen- 288 -~ 885 720 1,605
tial Units !
Total Non- 802,568 207,000 | 2,523,407 858,072 3,381,479
Residential | i
Square Foot- i
age P
if Amendment #1.is Pursued

Total Residen- 288 - 3 885 720 1,605
tial Units |
Total Non- 1,436,812 207,000 | 3,157,651 858,072 4,015,723
Residential ‘
Square Foot-
age

' Removal of Buildings 2539 and 2540 included in the Reuse Plan as buildings for reuse totaling
15,756 square feet.



Table 2: Non-Residential Building Reuse Index if Amendment #1 Pursued

Gross Office Lab/Data Homeless Retail Educ. Other

Square Feet

to be Re-

used

Existing Reuse Plan
Total Tin- 954,586 423,489 | 426,594 - 1,335 39,236 63,932
ton Falls
Excluding
Residential
Fort Total 2,079,061 816,168 | 635,637 31,322 108,089 | 73,460 237,509
Excluding
Residential
if Amendment #1 is Pursued

Total Tin- 938,830 423,489 | 410,838 - 1,335 39,236 64,932
ton Falls
Excluding
Residential
Fort Total 2,063,305 816,168 | 619,881 31,322 108,089 | 73,460 237,509
Excluding
Residential

Table 3: Residential Building Reuse Index if Amendment #1 Pursued

Tinton Falls Total Fort Tinton Falls Tinton Falls Fort Total Fort Total
Residential Residential | Total Residential | Total Residen- Residential Residential

Square Square Buildings to be tial Units to be | Buildings to Units to be
Footage to Footage to Reused Reused be Reused Reused
be Reused be Reused

Existing Reuse Plan

40,700 [ 790,000 | 11 | 22 | 83 [ 267

If Amendment #1 is Pursued

— | 750,000 | | | 72 [ 245

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses

The area surrounding Parcel E is developed for largely residential, educational and
recreational purposes. Three single-family detached homes are located at the
southwest corner of Hope Road and Tinton Avenue. To the north across Tinton Ave-
nue are both single-family attached and single-family detached homes. The Sunea-
gles Golf Course lies directly to the east across Hope Road. To the south, within the
former Fort boundaries is Building 2290 (the former Child Development Center),
Building 2566 (which was used as the Youth and School Age Services Building), and
Building 2569 (which was used as the Charles Wood Swimming Pool). The Reuse
Plan envisions all three of these buildings being reused.

The Reuse Plan envisions a mixed-income residential development on Parcel E—in
the form of garden apartments, townhouses, and detached residences—for the fol-
lowing reasons cited in Section 3.2: the area was historically a residential zone at
Fort Monmouth (however, all of the units have already been removed with the excep-
tion of the Hemphill Housing along Hope Road); and it would include the reuse of the
22 unit Hemphill Housing, thereby taking advantage of existing housing. The Plan




places detached housing along Tinton Avenue and recommends a 30-foot landscape
buffer between the roadway and proposed development. The Plan envisions higher-
density residential dwellings for the remainder of Parcel E so as to allow for a more
cost effective means of providing mixed-income housing.

As an alternative to residential use, office/R&D space would also be compatible with
surrounding land uses on Parcel E. Access can be provided from both Tinton Ave-
nue and Hope Road. In addition, the improvements to the Garden State Parkway
will provide more direct access to Tinton Avenue from both the northbound and
southbound lanes of the Garden State Parkway. Access to this location will also be
enhanced by improvements to the Hope Road/Route 36 intersection. Furthermore,
with the advantage of having convenient access to the regional highway network, the
site should be well positioned in terms of attracting new corporate office/research
users.

In addition, because a reconfigured Bataan Avenue? and Corregidor Road bound
Parcel E within the former Fort’'s boundaries, this would serve to buffer the parcel
from adjoining development. Moreover, in order to suitably accommodate of-
fice/research use at this location, imposition of appropriate regulatory controls, in-
cluding large setbacks and generous landscaped buffers along Tinton Avenue, Hope
Road, Bataan Avenue, and Corregidor Road should assure that both existing and fu-
ture residences are protected from new development. Any office/R&D buildings con-
structed should remain in the central portion of the parcel, and building heights and
development intensities should be sensitive to surrounding development patterns.

The redistribution of residential units to the locations shown in Figure 1 would be
generally compatible with existing and future development envisioned in the Reuse
Plan. Not only were apartments above ground-floor commercial space already con-
templated in the Reuse Plan as part of the mixed-use town center, but the addition of
an even larger number of such dwellings would enliven what is anticipated to be the
focal point of the Tinton Falls Reuse Area. This area would be within close walking
distance of the existing municipal complex, the retail establishments and office uses
in the town center, and the civic green and library. The mixed-income apartments
and the small-lot detached homes and townhouse units proposed to the east of the
town center would also be in close proximity to all of the town center's amenities.
Meanwhile, with appropriate regulatory safeguards in place, including adequate set-
backs and buffering, additional low-density units fronting Tinton Avenue would be
compatible with the established single-family properties neighboring the Reuse Area.

Finally, detached single-family homes and townhouses located along Laboratory
Road would be compatible with largely undeveloped lands to the south (as depicted

% The Reuse Plan locates Bataan Avenue to the east of its current location so that it intersects
Tinton Avenue to the east of Pond View Drive.




in the Reuse Plan) and would provide an appropriate transition to the more intensive
office and commercial uses contemplated in the northern and western sections of the
Reuse Area. Land use regulations for these residential units should insure that ade-
quate setbacks and buffers be provided in locations where the units adjoin non-
residential uses, specifically north of Laboratory Road.

Circulation

The amendment is consistent with and would not otherwise compromise any of the
“Transportation Circulation Improvement Goals” established in the Reuse Plan. The
proposed improvements to surrounding roadways, specifically Hope Road, Tinton
Avenue and the intersection of Tinton Avenue and Route 36, would further support
the alternative development scenario contemplated as part of this amendment.

The only difference is in relation to the Street Phasing Plans, as two proposed resi-
dential streets within Parcel E would not be built and two driveways would be added
to the street phasing plan: one from Tinton Avenue and one from Hope Road (i.e., to
provide access to Parcel E under the office/R&D use alternative). All other planned
streets, pedestrian, and transit plans would remain unchanged.

Open Space

The amendment would involve the removal of one ball field and three pocket parks
envisioned in the Reuse Plan for Parcel E. However, these parks could likely be ac-
commodated elsewhere in the Tinton Falls Reuse Area, particularly as part of new
(i.e., alternative) residential development.

Sustainability

The amendment would not preclude incorporation of any of the sustainability meas-
ures outlined in the Reuse Plan, consistent with all other development contemplated
on the former Fort properties.

Infrastructure

As indicated in the Reuse Plan, impacts on the existing gas, electric, water, waste-
water and telephone utilities servicing Fort Monmouth will have to be evaluated at
site plan review for a specific project. This assessment is unaffected by the amend-
ment.

Traffic

The Reuse Plan includes a Technical Memorandum: Traffic and Transportation (“the
Technical Memorandum” and “the Study”) which was prepared by STV, Inc. and dat-
ed April 10, 2008, modified June 25, 2008. It should be noted that the Technical

10



Memorandum was completed before the New Jersey Turnpike Authority (NJTA) an-
nounced in 2011 its intention to make improvements to Interchange 105 of the Gar-
den State Parkway in Tinton Falls and the intersection of Route 36 at Hope Road.

The Technical Memorandum concludes that the current configurations of the follow-
ing intersections in the vicinity of Parcel E are expected to be inadequate to process
the expected traffic overlays generated by the Reuse Plan: Route 36/Hope Road;

" Tinton Avenue/Route 35; and Hope Road/Tinton Avenue. These intersections are

among those which the Study anticipated to become main traffic focal points at full
build-out of the Reuse Plan.

The Garden State Parkway Southern Interchange Study: Interchange 105 (“the GSP
Study”) dated January 2011 was prepared by Stantec for NJTA. The GSP Study
notes that the Reuse Plan is expected at full build-out (i.e., 20 years out) to add up to
3,500 and 4,600 trips to the regional roadway network during the AM and PM peak
hours over existing use which has capacity constraints under existing conditions. The
GSP Study provides an analysis of potential roadway improvements to the intersec-
tion of Hope Road and Route 36 and Interchange 105, which is a full parkway inter-
change providing access to and from Route 36, Route 18 and Hope Road. The im-
provements are intended to provide congestion relief to vehicles utilizing the study
area roadways and improve safety.

As a result of the analysis, the GSP. Study concluded that the proposed improve-
ments to Interchange 105 would not only address existing issues at the interchange
and the Route 36 / Hope Road intersection, but also accommodate future traffic vol-
umes generated by the Reuse Plan. In 2011, NJTA announced its plans to reconfig-
ure the Parkway in Tinton Falls which will include improvements to the southbound
Interchange 105, the northbound outer roadway, and the intersection of Hope Road
and Route 36 as contemplated in the GSP Study. Construction could start in 2013.

Notwithstanding the above improvements to the adjacent roadway network, a de-
tailed traffic analysis would be prepared as part of any site plan review related to de-
velopment on Parcel E and any traffic mitigation necessary would be addressed at
that time.

Environmental Issues

The land permitted to be developed by this amendment is not environmentally con-
strained per Geographic Information System (GIS) layers provided by the New Jer-
sey Department of Environment Protection (NJDEP). Based on review of this data, it
is evident that those portions of the Reuse Area where this amendment permits resi-
dential development are suitable for housing, provided the plans within such areas
conform to the applicable requirements of NJDEP.

11



The Department of Defense (DoD) is working with the New Jersey Department of
Environmental Protection (NJDEP) on the ongoing environmental investigation and
remediation of the former fort properties. The DoD developed the Installation Resto-
ration Program (IRP) to comply with federal guidelines for managing and controlling
past hazardous waste disposal actions on Fort lands. Among the IRP sites identified
is FTMM-26 (former pistol range), which is located on vacant land on the northern
side of the intersection of Radiac Way and Laboratory Road. This amendment would
permit the development of townhouses adjacent to this site, however the U.S. Army
has indicated that it is considered a site of No Further Action (NFA) because investi-

gation and/or response actions are complete.

TopPViiST A ST LY

Historic Preservation

The amendment would necessitate the removal of the remaining units of the Hemp-
hill Housing. The Hemphill Housing area includes 22 duplex units (Buildings 2231
through 2240 and Building 2260) located along Hemphill Road on the western side
of Hope Road, east of Guam Lane and north of Corregidor Road. The structures
were built in 1955 and used as officer housing. The Hemphill Houses are in gener-
ally sound condition, but are in need of updating. The Reuse Plan refers to these
structures as “historic” but does not list them among the historic resources listed in
Chapter 7.0 Historic Preservation Guidelines of the Plan. In addition, they have not
been identified by the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) as worthy of listing
on the State or National Registers of Historic Places. Therefore, the amendment will
not impact historic resources required for preservation according to the Program-
matic Agreement between the SHPO and FMERA.?

Community Impacts and Affordable Housing

As noted in the Reuse Plan, the host communities, including Tinton Falls, rely on
taxation for the largest portion of their municipal revenues. The Fort’'s closure, and
the resulting loss of Defense contractor jobs is expected to result in a larger share of
the tax burden falling to residential property owners. The potential offered by this
amendment to increase non-residential tax ratables would therefore lessen the bur-
den on local residents.

Corporate headquarters, offices, research facilities, retail and other commercial uses
typicaily generate more positive fiscal impacts on a municipality, i.e., generate more
tax revenues than incur municipal costs, than do other land uses, including residen-
tial development. Additional office/R&D use permitted by this amendment can be
expected to have a positive fiscal impact on the tax base of Tinton Falls. The of-

% If this alternative development scenario is pursued, Buildings 2539 and 2540 would also be re-
moved. These buildings are not described as historic in the Reuse Plan and are not included in
the Programmatic Agreement between SHPO and FMERA.

12




fice/R&D use would not generate any school children and the municipal costs asso-
ciated per new employee, as indicated in the Reuse Plan, is about 20 percent less
than municipal costs associated per new resident in Tinton Falls.

The number of residential units in the Tinton Falls Reuse Area would remain the
same whether Parcel E is developed for residential or non-residential use. However,
the redistributed residential units would be in a somewhat different form than antici-
pated in the Reuse Plan (see Table 4). The change in housing type has some impli-
cations in terms of the population and number of schoolchildren anticipated from de-
velopment. The amendment contemplates 172 housing units in the form of apart-
ments (i.e., either in apartment buildings or above ground-floor commercial uses) as
opposed to 130 apartment units anticipated in the Reuse Plan —an increase of 42
units. These 42 units are drawn from the following housing units identified in the Re-
use Plan: the 22-unit duplex Hemphill Housing, 14 units of townhouse/rowhouses,
and six single-family large lot units. The New Jersey Demographic Multipliers pre-
pared by the Center for Urban Policy Research at Rutgers University (November
2006), indicates that the projected household size and number of school children
generated by single-family detached homes is only slightly higher than apartment
units and both are only slightly higher than single-family attached homes. Further-
more, the number of small lot single-family, i.e., 39 units, remains constant whether
the amendment is pursued or not, and the amendment still contemplates eight units
of single-family large lot homes. Single-family detached homes typically have larger
household sizes than either single-family attached homes (i.e., the Hemphill Houses
and townhouses/rowhouses) or muiti-family homes. Therefore, the amendment still
affords opportunities for family housing in the Reuse Area. Finally, as the Reuse Plan
also notes, higher-density residential dwellings allow for a more cost-effective means
of providing mixed-income housing. Therefore, although the overall population may
be reduced slightly if the amendment is pursued, it would still advance the Reuse
Plan goal of providing a variety of housing types and creating mixed-income
neighborhoods.

The amendment also anticipates fewer single-lot residential units and fewer town-
houses/rowhouses. Therefore, despite the fact that there would be 288 residential
units within the Tinton Falls Reuse Area regardless of how Parcel E is developed,
the larger number of multi-family units to be built if the amendment is pursued would
produce fewer schoolchildren and fewer residents, thereby reducing potential mu-
nicipal costs as estimated in accordance with the Reuse Plan.

13




Table 4: Breakdown of Housing Types in Tinton Falls

Hemphill | 1-Family 1-Family Townhouse/ Upper- Apartments Total
Hous- Small Lot | Large Lot Rowhouse Story
ing Residential

In Mixed-

Use Build-

ing

Existing Reuse Plan
22 | 39 | 14 | 83 [ — [ 130 [ 288
If Amendment #1 is Pursued

| 39 [ 8 | 69 | 82 [ 90 | 288

Relationship to Objectives and Principles of the Reuse Plan

The amendment will fulfill the objectives and planning principles outlined in the Reuse
Pian. Those planning objectives articuiated in the Reuse Plan include the following:

s Promote the Technology Corridor Initiative. When the Reuse Plan was adopted,
the governor touted the Fort's potential to become a “high-tech corridor.” The
amendment would allow for the development of additional office/R&D facilities
within the Tinton Falls Reuse Area.

¢ Be consistent with State, County, and Municipal planning policies. The amend-
ment is consistent with State, County, and Municipal planning policies, as set
forth in the ensuing chapter. '

e Focus on business retention and attraction, job replacement, and empioyee train-
ing. This amendment will provide for increased flexibility in relation to those loca-
tions where office/R&D use may be located within the Tinton Falls Reuse Area.
This flexibility will aid FMERA in its efforts to attract suitable users who wish to
develop new/expanded facilities, or who desire to relocate to Fort Monmouth
from locations outside the region.

e Be founded on market and economic analysis. By permitting additional of-
fice/R&D space to be created within the Tinton Falls Reuse Area, the amend-
ment responds to the current needs of the marketplace. In particular, the
planned improvements to the Garden State Parkway are likely to render portions
of the Reuse Area, including Parcel E, as more valuable for non-residential use,
and, therefore, be more attractive to potential corporate office/research users.

o Address homeless, COAH, and workforce housing needs. The amendment does
not change the total number of residential units planned for the Tinton Falls Re-
use Area, however it does change the type of residential units. There will be few-
er attached single-family homes and large-lot single family homes, which will
most likely result in a slightly lower household size and school-age population.

14




However, the amendment contemplates only six fewer single-family detached
homes (where household sizes are highest) than the Reuse Plan. Furthermore
the wide variety of housing types, including more apartments, will advance the
principle of creating mixed-income neighborhoods.

» leverage Fort assets (people, infrastructure, location). The amendment affords
FMERA with an opportunity to leverage the locational assets of the Tinton Falls
Reuse Use, i.e., proximity to the Garden State Parkway, together with improve-
ments to the Parkway and ancillary roads servicing the area, to attract new of-
fice/R&D users that generate much-needed local emplovment and tax ratables.

e Be a green community model. This amendment does not in any way preclude the
Tinton Falls Reuse Area from becoming a green community model.

The amendment further advances a number of key planning principles from which the
overall concepts in the Reuse Plan were devised:

Principle #1: Decreasing Density West to East & Create Mixed-Use Live/Work/Leisure
Centers. The Reuse Plan affirmatively states that the roadway capacity
and infrastructure serving Fort Monmouth best supports higher density
reuse and redevelopment in locations adjacent to the Garden State
Parkway. Greater density in the Tinton Falls Reuse Area was also sup-
ported in the Plan because there were fewer environmentally constrained
parcels in this area than elsewhere on the Fort.

Principle #2: Link centers & increase mobility with connected transit infrastructure serv-
ing the region and the Fort. The amendment would allow a redevelop-
ment pattern that takes advantage of its close proximity to the Garden
State Parkway. The amendment does not impact the Reuse Plan’s vision
for an extensive system of bikeways, pedestrian trails and sidewalks.

Principle #3: Enhance auto mobility and redevelopment capacity with targeted roadway
infrastructure improvements. The Reuse Plan acknowledges that rede-
velopment of the Fort will require improvements to the roadway system.
Specifically, the Plan identifies the potential need to widen Tinton Avenue
to provide added roadway capacity into the general area; and the poten-
tial need to widen Hope Road to provide added capacity between Route
36 and the Fort area.

Principle #4: Combine open space, habitat, and water resources to establish a con-
tinuous Blue — Green belt. The amendment, and specifically the potential
redistribution of residential units within the Tinton Falls Reuse Area, does
not preclude the creation of an open space network consisting of envi-

15




Principle #5:

Principle #6:

Principle #7:

ronmentally sensitive areas, including wetlands, watercourses, and habi-
tats.

Utilize the Blue — Green belt as an armature for enhanced bicycle and
pedestrian mobility throughout the Fort. The amendment would not im-
pact the proposed bike path, or trails envisioned as part of the Reuse
Plan.

Remove Fort boundaries & extend existing land uses to reconnect the
Fort to the communities. The amendment would not prevent the opening
of any gates into the Fort, nor inhibit public access to the Fort's amenities.

Leverage existing Fort Monmouth assets (People, Buildings, Technology,
and Infrastructure). Although some existing Fort buildings would be de-
molished if the amendment were pursued, the alternative development
scenario would not involve the removal of any buildings identified in the
Reuse Plan as being required for preservation.

In summary, the amendment is consistent with the Reuse Plan elements, objectives and
planning principles.

Relationship toc FMERA Directive

To implement the Fort Monmouth Reuse and Redevelopment Plan, the New Jersey
State legislature empowered the Fort Monmouth Economic Revitalization Authority
(FMERA) to adopt any maodifications or amendments to the Reuse Plan and adopt de-
velopment and design guidelines and land use regulations to implement the plan.

Pursuant to P.L.2010, c. 10 (N.J.S.A. 52:271-18 et. seq.), FMERA’s purpose is the fol-

lowing:

fo oversee, administer, and impiement the [Reuse Plan] as provided in this
act, in a manner that will promote, develop, encourage, and maintain em-
ployment, commerce, economic development, and the public welfare; to con-
serve the natural resources of the State; to provide housing, including hous-
ing to address identified needs related to homelessness; and to advance the
general prosperity and economic welfare of the people in the host municipali-
ties, the county, and the entire State by cooperating and acting in conjunction
with other organizations, public and private, to promote and advance the
economic use of the facilities located at Fort Monmouth.

The Reuse Plan amendment would advance both its stated purpose and the public wel-
fare, by promoting, developing, encouraging and maintaining employment, commerce
and economic development, as well as providing new housing.

16




IV. Relationship to State, County and Municipal Plan-

ning Objectives
State Development and Redevelopment Plan (SDRP)

On March 1, 2001, the State Planning Commission readopted the State Development
and Rede,velop'ment Plan (SDRP). In the SDRP, the Tinton Falls Reuse Area is classi-
fied as Planning Area 1, Metropolitan Planning Area (PA-1). The SDRP defines Metro-
politan Planning Areas as areas which “provide for much of the state’s future redevel-
opment; revitalize cities and towns; promote growth in compact forms; stabilize older
suburbs; redesign areas of sprawl; and protect the character of existing stable communi-
ties.” The amendment is well-reconciled with the guiding policies and policy objectives
of the adopted SDRP for the Planning Area 1, Metropolitan Planning Area.

Consistent with the goals for the PA-1, the amendment promotes the type of redevelop-
ment needed to transform the Tinton Falls Reuse Area, currently unused and unproduc-
tive, into a vibrant, mixed-use community with compact development that will ensure ef-
ficient utilization of scarce land resources while also carefully protecting the character of
surrounding communities. The SDRP further advocates for the provision of a full range
of housing choices in PA-1 through redevelopment, new construction and the introduc-
tion of new housing in appropriate nonresidential settings. The amendment is consistent
with this policy objective as well. Also in accordance with the objectives for PA-1, the
amendment allows for redevelopment in a location weil served by existing transportation
networks, including the Garden State Parkway.

Monmouth County Open Space Plan

The Monmouth County Open Space Plan, adopted by the Monmouth County Planning
Board in August 2006 as an element of the Monmouth County Growth Management
Guide, specifically advocates the acquisition of a portion of the Fort Monmouth property
as a new County park site. To fulfill this acquisition, Monmouth County filed a Notice of
Interest for park and recreation lands within Fort Monmouth. The County subsequently
filed an application to the National Park Service’s Federal Lands to Park Program for a
Public Benefit Conveyance, which was endorsed by the three host municipalities of Ea-
tontown, Oceanport and Tinton Falls.

The amendment is not inconsistent with the County’s interests with regard to parks and
recreation.

17




Tinton Falls Master Plan

The former fort properties in Tinton Falls are included within the “master plan” for Fort
Monmouth, i.e., the Reuse and Redevelopment Plan. However, a vision for the redevel-
opment of the fort is provided in the most recent Master Plan for the Borough of Tinton
Falls, adopted by the Borough Planning Board on April 25, 2007. The Borough Master
Plan anticipates the imminent redevelopment of Fort Monmouth, stating among its goals
to “ensure the most appropriate reuse of Fort Monmouth.” In addition, the Master Plan
asserts that “given this piece of property represents the last best opportunity to do some-
thing special for the Borough, it is appropriate that Tinton Falls advance its vision for the
ultimate development of the site.” To that end, the Plan articulates a vision for the fort’s
future as “a vibrant mixed-use development with commercial, residential, entertainment
and public uses in a traditional main street setting.”

The amendment is consistent with the vision articulated in the Borough Master Plan.
Further, the Land Use Regulations that implement the amendment should adhere to the
land use policies outlined in the Master Plan, including those relating to buffering of de-
velopment along Tinton Avenue from adjacent residential neighborhoods.

Tinton Falls Zoning

Although the development of the former fort properties in Tinton Falls will be governed
by the land use regulations and design guidelines adopted by FMERA, as a point of in-
formation, the study area lies within the Borough's OS/GU: Open Space/ Governmental
Use District under the municipality’s current zone plan. This designation represents a
new land use category for Tinton Falls and includes the County Park south of Route 33
and the County-owned parcels on the east side of Wayside Road. This category also
includes other large, publicly-held parcels, in addition to Fort Monmouth, including Naval
Weapons Station Earle and the County Reclamation Center. The intent of this designa-
tion is to allow existing activities on the properties as a matter of right while not commit-
ting to a specific zone scheme until they become available for development. Permitted
uses in the zone include open space and Borough and government uses. Permitted
conditional uses include churches and places of religious worship, and schools. There
are no bulk regulations for the OS/GU District.

The amendment is generally consistent with the Borough's intent for the Tinton Falls
Reuse Area.

18



V. Conclusion

The subject amendment, referred to as Amendment #1 to the Fort Monmouth Reuse and
Redevelopment Plan, maintains the land use concepts and plans articulated in the Re-
use Plan but also permits an alternative development scenario that, if pursued, would
result in development of 650,000 square feet of office/research space within a section of
the Tinton Falls Reuse Area designated as Parcel E. Under this alternative scenario, the
total number of residential units would remain at 288, however the 126 residential units
envisioned for Parcel E under the Reuse Plan would be redistributed tc other locations
within the Tinton Falls Reuse Area.

The amendment is consistent with the objectives and principles in the Reuse Plan, as
well as State, County and Municipal planning objectives. Furthermore, the amendment
advances the public welfare, particularly with regard to promoting, developing, encourag-
ing and maintaining employment, commerce and economic development, as well as
providing new housing opportunities. Lastly, the amendment provides flexibility for
FMERA to more effectively attract potential corporate office/R&D users to the Tinton
Falls Reuse Area, thereby enabling it to fulfill its statutory mandate to create new jobs,
regenerate the local tax base and advance the general prosperity and economic welfare
of the people most impacted by the Fort’s closure.

19



PHILLIPS PREISS GRYGIEL LLC
Planning & Real Estate Consultants
33-41 Newark Street

Third Floer, Suite D

Hoboken, NJ 07030
201.420.6262

Fax 420.6222

wwwppaplanners.oom

May 14, 2012

Bruce Steadman
FMERA

Executive Director
2-12 Corbett Way
Eatontown, NJ 07724

Subject: Amendment #1 to the Fort Monmouth Reuse and Redevelopment Plan
Dear Mr. Steadman:

As the preparers of the above referenced amendment to the Fort Monmouth Reuse
and Redevelopment Plan (the “Reuse Plan”) on behalf of the Fort Monmouth
Economic Revitalization Authority (“FMERA”), you have requested that Phillips Preiss
Grygiel LLC provide a written statement affirming that with Amendment #1 in place
the Reuse Plan remains a rational and coordinated plan and does not significantly
impact areas within the former Fort Monmouth boundaries of the other host
municipalities.

Amendment #1 provides for an alternative development scenario that would permit
development of 650,000 square feet of office/ research and development (R&D)
space on a 55-acre parcel (“Parcel E”) located in the northeast section of the former
Fort Monmouth property in the Borough of Tinton Falls, New Jersey. The existing
Reuse Plan envisions Parcel E to be redeveloped with 126 low- and medium-density
housing units, together with ball fields and a field house, and three neighborhood
parks. The amendment redistributes the 126 residential units to other locations
within the Tinton Falls Reuse Area so that the total number of residential units
proposed for the Reuse Area, i.e., 288 units, remains unchanged.

The amendment does not purport to delete any provisions of the Reuse Plan but
rather is intended to supplement the Plan by providing for an alternative
development scenario for Parcel E. The amendment would be incorporated into the
Land Use Regulations in a manner similar to an “overlay zone,” whereby an
additional set of requirements are superimposed on the area allowing for such
alternative development scenario to be realized. Overlay zoning would provide
additional opportunities for development which would not apply unless the land is
developed in accordance with the purposes for which the overlay zoning was
adopted.

In our professional opinion, with the amendment in place, the Reuse Plan remains a
rational and coordinated plan that continues to be consistent with the objectives and
principles in the Reuse Plan, as well as State, County and local planning goals.
Moreover, the amendment will not significantly impact the areas within the former
Fort Monmouth boundaries of the other host municipalities. The amendment



PHILLIPS PREISS GRYGIEL LLC

Planning & Real Estate Consultants

considers and addresses potential impacts of the alternative development scenario
on surrounding land uses, roadway networks, utility infrastructure, traffic patterns,
environmental and historic resources, population and affordable housing.

The amendment further advances the public welfare by promoting, developing,
encouraging and maintaining employment, commerce and economic development,
and by affording FMERA the flexibility necessary to more effectively attract potential
corporate office/R&D users to the Tinton Falls Reuse Area, thereby enabling it to
fulfill its statutory mandate to create new jobs, regenerate the local tax base and
advance the general prosperity and economic welfare of the people most impacted
by the Fort’s closure.

We trust that the above is responsive to your needs.

Yours sincerely,

| 207 i

Paul A. Phillips, PP, AICP

11238




THE TN
FORT ﬂh%

ATTACHMENT

[The legal opinion from outside counsel and legal opinion from BRAC counsel that the
preceding memo refers to have been removed from this full agenda.]



ADOPTED
May 16, 2012

Resolution Regarding the
Selection of Design-Build Services
Request for Proposals (RFP)

WHEREAS, the Legislature enacted the Fort Monmouth Economic Revitalization
Authority Act (“Act”), P.L. 2010, c. 51, to create the Fort Monmouth Economic Revitalization Authority
(“FMERA” or “Authority”); and

WHEREAS, section 9 of the Act authorizes the Authority to issue Requests for
Proposals and to retain consultants; and

WHEREAS, on March 29, 2012, the Authority issued a publically advertised Request
for Proposals (“the RFP”) for design-build services to retrofit and convert the Library (Building #502) to

professional administrative space on the Fort Monmouth property with bid submissions due on April 27,
2012; and

WHEREAS, 11 proposals were received and 1 proposal was deemed to be ineligible;
and

WHEREAS, on May 3, 2012 an evaluation committee deemed three proposals to be
non-compliant and scored the remaining seven proposals; and

WHEREAS, staff conducted interviews with the three highest ranked firms; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the interviews, two proposals were found to be deficient
relative to the requirements of the scope of work; and

WHEREAS, the scores were recalculated based on the interviews, and Patock
Construction Co. (“Patock”) was selected as the top scoring proposal on a cost and technical basis; and

WHEREAS, The Authority proposes to fund the Library renovation from two sources:
A grant from the Office of Economic Adjustment (OEA) approved in the amount of $214,434 and a loan
from the New Jersey Economic Development Authority (EDA) approved by the EDA in the amount of
$300,000; and

WHEREAS, prior to entering into a contract, FMERA staff will work with Patock to
come to a mutually agreeable reduction in the scope of work and/or the contract price to complete the
project with the funds currently available; and

WHEREAS, the Members of the Board wish to award the design-build contract to
Patock pursuant to the RFP subject to certain conditions stated below and to amend the Authority’s
budget to reflect the sources and uses of funds for this project.



THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. For the reasons expressed in the attached Board memorandum, the Authority
approves entering into a contract in the amount of $514,434 with Patock Construction Co. for design-
build services to retrofit and convert the former Library (Building #502) in accordance with the terms
and conditions set forth in this Resolution, the RFP, and Patock’s proposal and subject to the approval of
the Attorney General’s Office and the Executive Director as well as to the following conditions.
Execution of a contract with Patock and commencement of pre-construction work is subject to: 1)
completing the loan transaction with EDA; 2) agreeing with Patock to reduce the scope of work and/or
contract price to no more than $514,434; and 3) amending FMERA’s budget to include the sources and
uses of funds for this project. Construction work for retrofit and conversion of the Library is subject to:
1) Board approval of an interim lease with the Army for the Library; 2) execution of the interim lease;
and 3) the Authority obtaining comprehensive hazard and fire insurance, including builders risk
coverage, covering the Library.

2. Subject to the separate approval by the Authority of the loan from the EDA, the
Authority approves amending its budget to reflect the sources and uses of funds currently available for
this project.

3. Subject to the conditions above, the Authority authorizes the expenditure of funds
to fulfill the selection of Patock to serve as the design-build firm.

4. Subject to the conditions above, the Authority authorizes the Executive Director
to take all necessary actions to effectuate the selection of Patock as the design-build firm.

5. This resolution shall take effect immediately, but no action authorized herein shall
have force and effect until 10 days, Saturdays, Sundays, and public holidays excepted, after a copy of
the minutes of the Authority meeting at which this resolution was adopted has been delivered to the
Governor of the State of New Jersey for his approval, unless during such 10-day period the Governor of
the State of New Jersey shall approve the same, in which case such action shall become effective upon
such approval, as provided by the Act.

Dated: May 16, 2012 EXHIBIT 2
ATTACHMENT




FoRT[IL.

MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the Board of Directors
FROM: Bruce Steadman
Executive Director
RE: Award of Design-Build Services Request for Proposals (RFP)
DATE: May 16, 2012
Request

I am requesting Members of the Board of Directors’ approval to award a design-build contract to
Patock Construction Co. pursuant to a Request for Proposals (RFP) for design-build services to
retrofit and convert the Library (Building #502) to professional administrative space on the Fort
Monmouth property.

Background
Governor Christie signed P.L. 2010 c. 51 on August 17, 2010 to create the Fort Monmouth
Economic Revitalization Authority (FMERA or the Authority). The economies, environment,
and quality of life of the host municipalities, Monmouth County, and the State will benefit from
the efficient, coordinated, and comprehensive redevelopment and revitalization of Fort
Monmouth.

The Authority offices at 2-12 Corbett Way Eatontown are currently leased. As the Local
Redevelopment Authority (LRA), FMERA has the opportunity to obtain use of office space on
Fort Monmouth at less than fair market value thus resulting in a cost savings to FMERA and the
Department of Defense, Office of Economic Adjustment. The Authority office must be available
to the general public and could not be located on Fort Monmouth as long as the Army had an
active mission there. Now that the Fort has been closed, the general public can have access to the
Fort property. The Authority has decided to relocate its office to Building 502, the former Post
Library, on Fort Monmouth. In order to accommodate the Authority offices, the building must be
refitted and converted from its former use as a library to professional administrative space. In
addition, many of the building systems will require updating and/or replacement. The Authority
would like to be moved into this building no later than September 30, 2012.

Therefore, on March 29, 2012 FMERA issued a publically advertised RFP for design-build
services to retrofit and convert the Library to professional administrative space on the Fort
Monmouth property. A mandatory pre-proposal conference for prospective proposers was held at
the FMERA Office in Eatontown on April 9, 2012. Proposals were due on April 27, 2012 by
noon. FMERA received 11 proposals from the following firms: Benjamin Harvey, Cypreco, Ella
Construction, Gilligan & Bubnowski, Jablan General Construction, M&M Construction, NK



Architects, Patock Construction Co., River Drive Construction, R.J. Michaels & Co. Inc., and
Ronald Schmidt & Associates. The proposal from River Drive Construction was found to be
ineligible for evaluation as they did not submit the required information nor did they submit the
required copies of their proposal.

The 10 remaining technical proposals were distributed to the Evaluation Committee. The
Committee was made up of 3 FMERA staff members. The Evaluation Committee met on May 3,
2012 to review the technical proposals. The evaluation was based upon a comparative ranking
with an emphasis on prior experience and management approach. As a result of the evaluation,
three proposals were found to be non-compliant with the RFP due to their failure to include
certain required information. The technical ranking of responsive proposals ranged from a high
of 245 out of a maximum of 270 points to a low of 190 points. The three top scoring proposers
were requested to come in for oral interviews. FMERA conducted these oral interviews on May
10 and 11. As a result of the oral interviews, two proposals were found to be deficient relative to
the requirements of the scope of work. The cost proposals for the five remaining responsive
proposals were scored. Among the responsible bidders, the range of cost was $807,700 submitted
by Patock Construction Co., to the highest cost submitted of $1,041,163. Patock Construction
Co. was selected as the top scoring proposal on a cost and technical basis. Patock’s technical
proposal is the highest scoring responsible proposal and the lowest responsible fee proposal.

The Authority proposes to fund the Library renovation from two sources: A grant from the
Office of Economic Adjustment (OEA) and a loan from the New Jersey Economic Development
Authority (EDA). The Authority’s grant request was reviewed and approved by OEA in the
amount of $214,434. The EDA Board approved a $300,000 term loan to the Authority at its May
8, 2012 meeting as part of a larger credit facility. That credit facility is being presented to the
Members for consideration at today’s meeting. We anticipate that the $300,000 loan will be
repaid from the Authority’s share of the proceeds from the sale of Parcel E to CommVault later
this year. In the event that the CommVault transaction is not completed, the loan will be repaid
from the Authority’s share of rent and sales proceeds from various assets, including the golf
course, the Health Clinic parcel, the U.S. General Services Administration parcel (i.e. Building
2525), and any other sales or leases that might arise. Prior to entering into a contract, FMERA
staff will work with Patock Construction Co. to come to a mutually agreeable reduction in the
scope of work and/or the contract price to complete the project with the funds currently
available. If, in the future, additional funds become available for retrofit and conversion of the
Library, FMERA staff may seek further Board approval to reinstate some of the reduced scope of
work and increase the project budget above the currently available $514,434.

Execution of a contract with the selected design-build firm and commencement of pre-
construction work is subject to the following: 1) completing the loan transaction with EDA and
2) agreeing with Patock Construction Co. to reduce the scope of work and/or contract price.
Construction work for retrofit and conversion of the Library is subject to the following: 1)
Authority Board approval of an interim lease with the Army for the Library; 2) execution of the
interim lease; and 3) FMERA obtaining comprehensive hazard and fire insurance, including
builders risk coverage, covering the Library.



Subject to the separate approval by the Members of the loan from the EDA, the Members are
asked to approve amending the Authority budget to reflect the sources and uses of funds
currently available for this project.

Recommendation

In summary, I am requesting the Members' approval to enter into a contract with Patock
Construction Co. for design-build services to retrofit and convert the Library (Building #502) to
professional administrative space on the Fort Monmouth property. FMERA’s contract with
Patock Construction Co. is subject to the approval of the Attorney General’s Office and the
Executive Director, as well as the conditions set forth above. I am further requesting the
Members’ approval, subject to the subsequent consideration of the loan from EDA, to amend the
Authority’s budget to reflect the sources and uses of funds currently available for this project.

ce Steadman

(]
ki

ATTACHMENT: Design-Build Scoring Synopsis

Prepared by: Rick Harrison




|

RFP Proposal Scoring Synopsis

Firm Score Fee
Cypreco Industries, Inc. 190 $823,823
NK Architects 218 $997,160
Benjamin R. Harvey Company, Inc. 225 $1,041,163
M&M Construction 230 $1,000,030
Patock Construction 240 $807,700




ADOPTED
MAY 16,2012

Resolution Regarding the
Fort Monmouth Economic Revitalization Authority
2011 Comprehensive Annual Report

WHEREAS, Governor Christie signed the Fort Monmouth Economic
Revitalization Authority Act (“Act”), P.L. 2010, ¢. 51, to create the Fort Monmouth Economic
Revitalization Authority (“FMERA” or “Authority”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority selected its independent auditors, Schneider &
Company pursuant to Executive Order No. 122 (McGreevey); and

WHEREAS, the Authority’s independent auditors, Schneider & Company
reviewed and accepted the Authority’s audited financial statement for January 1, 2011 to
December 31, 2011; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Executive Order No. 122 (McGreevey), the Audit
Committee reviewed the draft comprehensive Annual Report for January 1, 2011 to December
31,2011; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Executive Order No. 37 (Corzine) the Authority is
required to submit its comprehensive Annual Report for review from its Members;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The Members of the Authority approve the Authority’s 2011
Comprehensive Annual Report and approve submitting the Report to the Governor’s Authorities
Unit and posting it on the Authority’s website.

2. The Executive Director and/or any individual authorized to execute
documents pursuant to the Operating Authority is authorized to do and perform all acts necessary
to effectuate the above.

3. This resolution shall take effect immediately, but no action authorized
herein shall have force and effect until 10 days, Saturdays, Sundays, and public holidays
excepted, after a copy of the minutes of the Authority meeting at which this resolution was
adopted has been delivered to the Governor of the State of New Jersey for his approval, unless
during such 10-day period the Governor of the State of New Jersey shall approve the same, in
which case such action shall become effective upon such approval, as provided by the Act.

DATED: May 16, 2012 EXHBIT 3
ATTACHMENT




FOI?TE@

MEMORANDUM

TO: Members of the Board of Directors

FROM: Bruce Steadman
Executive Director

DATE: May 16, 2012

SUBJECT: 2011 Comprehensive Annual Report

Request

The Members of the Board are requested to approve the Authority's comprehensive annual
report for 2011, as required under Executive Order No. 37 (2006).

Background

The Authority distributes the Annual Report of accomplishments and activities in support of the
revitalization and redevelopment of Fort Monmouth. To meet the requirements of Executive
Order No. 37 (2006), the Annual Report is combined with the audited financial statements and
serves as FMERA’s "comprehensive annual report" for 2011.

The audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 were prepared pursuant
to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for a government entity. I am also pleased to
inform the Board that the independent accounting firm of Schneider & Company has issued an
unqualified opinion with regard to the 2011 financial statements.

Certification accompanying the financial statements has been executed by the Executive
Director and the Director - Finance & Administration that the Authority has followed its
standards, procedures and internal controls.

On May 8, 2012, per its Charter, as well as section 9 of Executive Order 122 (2004), the Audit
Committee reviewed the draft comprehensive annual report, including the 2011 audited financial
statements prior to release and considered the relevancy, accuracy and completeness of the
information presented. Also pursuant to Executive Order 122 (2004), the independent auditor
met with the Audit Committee, where it was reported that the financial audit resulted in no
negative findings or internal control deficiencies. With regard to the compliance requirements
under OMB Circular A-133, the Auditors reported that due to the change in entity from the

2-12 Corbett Way ¢ Eatontown, NJ 07724-4251 e Tel: 732.720.6350 ¢ Fax: 732.935.7440



Predecessor Authority to the Fort Monmouth Economic Revitalization Authority, submission of
certain data collection forms were not timely to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. The Auditors
noted that the Authority has established procedures to insure timely submission of future data
forms, and with the submission of this report the Authority will be in compliance with the OMB
Circular A-133 requirements. Subsequent to the meeting and its review of the report, the
Committee recommended that the report be presented to the Board for approval.

Under Executive Order No. 37 (2006), the Authority is required to obtain approval of a
comprehensive annual report from its Board of Directors. Upon approval, this report will be
submitted to the Authorities' Unit, and the Federal Audit Clearinghouse, posted to the FMERA
website, and transmitted electronically to members of the Legislature.

Recommendation:

Staff has prepared the comprehensive annual report for 2011, as required under Executive Order
No. 37 (2006) and recommends Members' approval in order to submit the report to the
Governor's Authorities Unit, and the Federal Audit Clearinghouse, post to Authority website,
and transmit to the Legislature.

Bruce Steadman

ATTACHMENT
Prepared by: Beverlee Akerblom

2-12 Corbett Way ¢ Eatontown, NJ 07724-4251 » Tel: 732.720.6350 * Fax: 732.935.7440




THE

FORT \_\‘//_..__

ATTACHMENT

ALLYA X

[The comprehensive annual report for 2011 that the preceding memo refers to has been removed
from this full agenda.]



e ™

LLOZ ‘L€ 19quiaoa( papus iedl ayj 104

Arewwing jeuonesad pue jeisueul

Auoyiny uonezije’irsy 1ouody YNnowuoy 3404




Aesiap MaN
J0 81)S 8y} woJ} suoneudoidde pue sjuelb [eiapa4 :s821nos Buipunj Jolejy e
1L0Z Ul $884 uonessdQ
Ul 000'S$ panIsoal Ajuoyiny ‘saijijioed pue 8sino) J|os sse|besung Jo
uonelado Joj Jusweaibe soueusjulew pue Juswabeuew [euoissajoid paubls

68671 €$ Aq pasealoap sjasse Jau sAjuoyiny syl e

JusLIno 8le ¢1./'/0)'7$ UOIUM JO 69E'GZy'2$ ©Je Solliqel| [BloL

121262 2$ 0} Junowe sjasse |10} s Aoyiny 8yl e
s1ybijybiH 198ys oueljeg

LLOZ ‘LE 49quieoa(d pepus Jeah ayj 1o) pue bulng
uonisod jeroueuld Vo33N




"3WI3 SIY3 3B JUBID) |eJ9Pa4 SY3 JO SWIS} Y1 JopuUN Juawasinquiial 1oy Ajijenb jou op sasuadxa paje|al
juswdojanap d1Wou02a pue ‘Ywi| Adejes Jeuoidad 4o) Juswisnlpe 1sa4a1ul pue sadIAISS Joddng 9010 pue
‘souasqe paresuadwod se 985878 ‘TS JO sasuadxe Suilesado [e103 3yl WOJJ SIBYIP Junowe syl "0zs ‘S8 csS
}JO sasuadxa juelo) |eJapa4 Uo paseq ‘€5G‘gyZS 01 pajunowe polad 8y} o) pue Aasiaf MaN 4O 21e1S

ay1 Aq uonerdoidde ayl Aq palysiies sem Juels |eaapa4 9yl JO SWUS1 3yl Japun padinbal Yyojey (20T dYL

"(v30) uawisn(py diwouod] Jo 9140 3yl Aq panoidde asodind
9y31 Joj aJe pasindul sasuadxa ay3l 1Y} JuUaIXa 9y} 01 paziuS0odaJ Sl aNUSASY JUelD |eJapa4 :|aAd] Sulpuads ayl .

U] UOIJONPaI 0} NP G6LYIE'Z$ J0 Junowe JaBpNg ay} JOPUN %G SI L96°9EZ°Z$ JO @NUBASY JuelD [eJapad

‘paJiajep sem Juawdinba jo aseyound .

{dsuadxa uol1edlUNWWOD pue ‘|aAel]
‘sajjddns se yons ‘s3S02 SAIRJISIUIWPE PUE |BJ9USS UIBLIDD JO UOIONPaJ B Ul PalNsal [9A3] SUljjels JOMOT

Awuy 2yl yiim suolieijogau Ul UoI1eIS|9I0E 0} dNP TTOT Ul 1I98pNQ JOA0 S1S00 |e§a pue [eJUBWUOIIAUT

‘ Ajaniroadsal TZS'S82S pue £99°99TS 949M Yad pue dOg @yi Joj sasnjdins
198png 0TOZ 'TT0Z 01 Sluawade8ua asayy Jo SIS0 8y} Jo uoiliugodal ayi Suliys ‘poisad ayy 4oy paloafoid
uey JoMO| $19eJ1u0d SullNSU0d 350D PaxIy @Syl uo s3ul||iq ssaJ8oud OTOT "SIUBIRYIP Suiwil JO 3 nsal

aJe (y3d) |esn1oayouay ‘Suiseauidu] ‘Sujuueld pue (dOg) ueld suonesadQ pue ssauisng J0j s1olJap 193png .

‘€T |9A9] Suiyjels paloafoud ‘g Jo |9AD SulyjelS [enldoe :|OA9] SUlljelS PadnNpPayY .

.0} 9np _oo_._mﬁ_ 9y} 10} “_.wmﬁ:o_ omm.wmm.ww 9y} Japun 9%,G°G aJe sasuadxo mc_am._oqo .owm.wanNw I\

LLOZ ‘LE Jaquieoa( papus Jeah sy} joj pue bulng
Arewwng jeuonesadO VNS




0102 ‘1€ Jequiadaq 0} (uondsoul) 010z ‘62 Joquiaides pouad ay) Joj
sisAjeuy 19SSy 1oN Ul 8bueyn asuadxg pue anuanay bunesadQ

0102 ‘L€ Joqwadsq 0} (uondsoul) 0102 ‘6¢ Jequeldss pouad ay} 1o}
19bpng 0] sesuadx3 ‘snuanay |enjoy

0L0¢C
11L0Z ‘1€ Jaquaoa( papus Jeak ay) Jo)

sisfjeuy 19SSy 19N ul abuey) pue asuadx3 pue anusaay bunesad

pue ‘110z ‘L€ Jequaoa( papus Jesk ay) o)
196png 0] sesuadxg ‘enusAsy [enjoy

1102
:suoday

éhmnvu_

JHL




(686T1€) $ 1985 19N UT 95uRgD)
0£9°€97 snusasy SuneradO-UoN 810,
0£9 . SWOoU] 3SOISIUT
000°€92 Kosiof maN Jo 23e1g woy uoreridorddy
(sosuadx() sanusady SuneradQ-uoN
(NS (6199LS) (ssop) sBupuaey SunessdQ 19N
#96°€91) $ | %0001 | 056667 %0'001 | 985°878°C 1800 pue sesuadxy [e10],
886°SSY %18C | 1L61¥8 %6 St | 656°L6T°1 $150D) [E10,
10€°1SY %18C 1L6°1+8 %L St TLTE6TT $1500) WerdoId [el0],
(Orr°S) 0£661 | 06k 1 asuadxq yIpny
09%°8§ 000°0€1 097381 [esunoD DV - [e80]
(0or1) 0071 - JIojoenuoy) A0[0uyoa ], UOHRULIOU]
#81%S) 000°G11 91809 Jueynsuo) Suruue]d
806°G8 00006 806°SL1 JUE)NSUO)) [EJUSUWUOTIAUF
€6T°1€C SLY91T 80L°Lit "Ateg Sunnsuo) Yory ‘Suy Buruuelq
90321 991967 0€C8E Juej[nsuo) ue[d SuersdQ pue sseursng
00912 - 009°1T sosuadxy SOI[I08,] Pue 9SIN0D) JIOD
s1500 wreidolg
189% %00 - %C 0 | L89% Js010U]
$150D)
(256°619) %6'1L | 6LS0ST°T %IPS | LTO0EST i sosuadxy] SATeXSIUIIPY [€10],
(11501 %L 0C 6v5°819 %181 GEVELS QAIRXSTUTIUPY PUR [BISUSD [BI0L,

- 000705C 000°05T s9o1a19g Hoddng 20150
(berc) 0S16 9TL'E STeurwag pue s3UeSA
(610°2) LSEOE 8€€9 [eARI],

ob1°6C - 16T Je1g 90O Arerodwa,
(805°€1) oL1’0y 799°9C osuedXf UOTEOIUNUNIO))
(880°€) £9€ Y SLTO1 a8ejsod pue serfddng 010
SEE'E 008°T | SETS 910N [e89]
(165°1) STOH91 EFTIL JUSY NPO
(PP6°5T) 6251y 68691 SoueIMSU]
(120°0€) SST°LE YEL'L Juswdmby
SANRIISTUTWIPY 29 [eISUSD)
(8€3%1S) %' 1S 0£0TEST %0'9€ T61LI0T poddng 90150 1021 [EI0L
(Sev°102) 089°09¢ SHT65T sygeusg a8ur1g - poddng 20150 1091
(cov'e1E) 0SETLO'T LY6°LSL [euuosIag - Hoddng 99150 1021
poddng 901gQ 10211(T
sasuadxy sAne.NSIUIUPY
(328Z11) S6LPIET $ L96°1STT $ enueasy Surjerado [e10],
000t - 000551 SOI[IOR,] pUR 9SO J[oD) --s99,] Suneiedp
(828°L21) $ S6LYIET$ L96°9ETT $ SNUSAY JURID) [RISPI]
S9NUIAY SunesadQ
198png Ju019J 198png 2010 Tenjoy
(3opun) @AQ

110Z 1€ 1oquI202(] popue Jeak oy 10,
108png 0} sesuadxf pue SNULAY [ENOY
Auoyny UOTRZI[R)IASY STWOUOYH YINOWUO 1O




(686'2L€)

(99p'12€)

sjossy JaN ui abueyo

sasuadxg BulAjjenpuoN

awoou| 994 JojeradQ Jo SS99Xa ul sasuadxg JojesadQ

(009'9)
110'GL $ juels) |elapa4 Jo} Juswalinbal yojep |20 JO SS99XD Ul dNUBASY HBunesado-uoN
s)jassy JaN ul abuey9 jo sishjeuy
(686'21€) $ (99t'L2€) $ (009'9) $ 110Gl $ sjessy joN u1 abueys
0€9'c92 0£9'€92 anuaAsy BupesadQ-uoN |ejoL
0€9 (0]%°] awoouj }salaju|
000'€92 000'c92 Kasiar maN Jo 9jels oy} wouy suoneudoiddy
anuaAay HBupesado-uon
(619'929) (99v'L2€) (009'9) (egs'8¥2) sso1 bupesado
985°828'C oov'lee 009°le 0zs‘s8r'e saesuadx3 BuneradQ [ejoL
189'Y 189'% AJag 3ddng 398.11puj] UO JSala}u|
veV'ELs Le'oLe €60°'che SAjjeljSiulWpY pue [eijsusn
TAXA AL 0L0'6 009't2 299'c9Z'L s}so9 weiboid
€61'210°1 8cy'Le $ G9/'616 asuadx3 poddng aayj0 10211
sasuadx3g Bupesado
196'162'C 000G} 196'9€2'2 anuaasy BupesadQ |ejoL
000'GL 000°'S1 $ se94 Jojesado
196'9e2'c % 196'9€2'c ¢ sjuels) |esapo4
anuaAay Bunelado
aviol sasuadxgy 994 JojesadQ juelc) |eIdpay
BuifyjenpuoN

110Z ‘}€ 19qwadsag papua Jeak ay} 1o

aoinog Buipung Aq m_m>_m:< asuadx3 pue anuaaay Bunerado

fuoyiny uopezijeAsy J1Wouod YINOWUO 3o




(LEPIST) § S}aSSY JON ul da3uey)
LLT uwioduy 1sIU]
aNuIANY SuneradQ-uoN
(zs1°807) § 1L181) sso'] SuneradQ
(0so‘sL) $ | |w0001 6£0°616°1 707001 St YL sasuadx( [e)o,
69% - - %10 69% asuadx 3so103uf
- %IV 00529 %P8 00529 s150)) 3.10ddng 201330 392.11pu]
(TiLen %8¢ TLY'8S %19 09L°SY
(L8TY) vZoy ¥S6°GE oy
(Los‘s) €61°01 989y soueInSU]
(0580) 88L°L 866 asuedxg UOHBOIUNWILIO))
(89) 0S¢ 81 SUISTIOAPY _
RELiiTe)
(650°%SS) %979 TI9°1S6 % €S €65°L6€
(088°¢c1) 0ze'61 ob¥°s ssuodxy ypny
(840°LE) 000°SS TS6°LI [osuno) DV - [€89]
(00z°1) 00T1 - 1030E1jU0Y) AF0[OUTI3 ], UOEULIOFU]
(evL'6h) 000°09 LST0T "AJSS SUINSUOD) [BIUSUILONAUH
(125°s82) STY'619 $06°€9¢€ | "ATeS Supnsuo) yory “Suy Suruue[q
(L99°991) L99°99T § - $ | sueid SunessdQ pue ssoursng
[enjoenuo)
(81L°L) %9°0 ¥61°6 %C'0 9L¥1 soniddng
(evc's) %L'S €LOLS %20 0€8‘1 yuwowmdmby
(s98°c) %E'0 T81°S %C0 LIET AR,
(€€LTS) %89 €PL €01 %69 010°TS spyouag aduriy - jso) yroddng 30150 3011
(0TL°8S) %6°ST €97 1T %S ¥T €75 T8I [PuuosId{ - 350D 310ddng 39130 121
sasuddx
(ep1°81L) 188°01€T ¥¥L°T6S anuaAdy SunerdQ [ejoL,
(ep1°81L) $ L8801ET § YrLT6S  § 9NUIAIY JUEIS) [BIIPIT
198png JUDIDJ 193png JU219J [emoy SINuaAdY superddQ
(10pup)) 1940

0102 ‘1€ 30quaoa(g 03 (wondaouy) 00T ‘6¢ 2oqueideg pored oty 10,4
198png 01 sasuadxF pue anULAY [ENIOY
ALIOYINY UOTIRZI[B)IASY OIWOUOOH YINOWUOTA] HOJ



sasuadxg BulAyjenpuonN
juelis) jelapad 1o} Jusawaiinbal ysjep jeso]
sjassy JoN ul abueyo jo sisAjeuy

$ sjassy JoN ul abueys

awloou| }saLajuj
anuaAay Bunelrado-uoN

sso Bunesado

sasuadxg BunesadQ jejo

Al9g 3ddng Jo0dIpu] Uo }salajul
9AljeJ}SIUIWPY pUE [elduds)
s)so9 weiboid

asuadxg poddng aa130 310941Q
sasuadxg bunerado

anuaAay HunesadQ |ejo L

$ sjuels) [elapo4
anuaAay bBunesado

(2e¥°LG1) $

(£68'G8)

(¥85'G9) $

(2e¥°1LS1) $ (e58'g8) ¢  (¥86'G9)

112 112

(F12151) (£58'68) (198'69)

Gy Y. £69°G8 509'859

69Y 69P

£88'CLL 00529 £8€'0S

€66'/6€ £GG'/6€

£66'eET ¥88'ce $ 699'0LC

v¥1'265 v¥.'265

v¥1'265 $ v¥.'265
IviOL sasuadxg jueis eldpoad

BuifpenpuoN

0102 ‘L€ J18qwaoaq o} (uondeaaul) 0102 ‘6Z Jeqwaldag pouad ayj Jo4
2ainog Buipun4 Aq sisAjeuy asuadxg pue anuanay Bunerado
Ajuoyiny uonjezije}inay WU YINOWUO 3o



SONiIAIOY pue smjejs

V3N uo ajepdn




0l

aoe|d ul wea) VYN
‘onljJosse ‘pasusiadxy .

siohojdwa/si0}soAUl
Bunoeme vyINd -

sanljiqisuodsal [RJUBSWIUOIIAUD
uo bunjiom Aury .

ued
uonisues} bunenobau yyINg -

LLOZ/SL/6 pPajedeA Auly .

‘SN1VLS




seale 2LI0}SIY
‘SONUDA |euoljealdal
‘ooeds uaaln)

JuswaAosduwil

GOl ux@ Nov$ Ag
pa@o2ueyud $S829€ 4S9

19)em

pue ‘jiea ‘e ‘Aemybiy
0} $S9998€ JUd||9IX]
uolzeos0| buipueysino
ul saloe 97l

‘SM3N dOOS

77




cl

T3 O P

007 oE1 W) DSOSE O

BULIBJ\] PUB 9SIN09D J|05) .
ainjonJisesjul
ejep pue adl10A
JuUd|j9oXxd ‘Buls Jaqi4 -

Buibpoj
pue Buisnoy jo 4SING'L -

S921JO0 JO ASING'L -

sqe| pue aoeds yooa|
-IH/A8Y 40 4S 000°008 -

:PJU0d SMIN dOOY




P




147

Si9pjoydxelS PalysHes y
S9NSS| [BJUBWIUOIIAUD S9Ajosal Awlly ainsug "¢
Sp9920.4d 9]es JO JUsW}SaAUI-3Y ¢

uoneaid qor |

m_mcmv <¢m_>_u_
@EE

dHl




]2

uoIuUdlaYy qor/saluedwiod builsixs Y}im HIOM}BN -
saiuedwod abue| ‘wnipaw ‘jjews buowe paljisidAIg -
spjouaq/Aed poob ‘gey ‘Yyoal-ybiH -

Aosiap maN 03 sqol mau bug -

siJayoieasal/siobeuew/siayiom yosal-ybiy Aojdwo-ay .

(sqor 000°‘G) uoneaid qor "L




9l

JybBisiano/LoAins[UOISIAIP-gNS

$94NJoNJ}S ||e JO 9oueUdUIRW pue Jleday

jeAowdl juled pea| pue s0}saqsy

sBuipjing 9}9]0SqO JO UoIIjowWa(]

UoI}2NIISUOD MdU pue sapesbdn ispeou pue s}aaNg
swia)sAs Aynn pjo 1eah+(Qg Jo Juswase|dayjuonyelijiqeyay]
10} pasn 9 ||IM aieys S, VHdINd -

spaadoid alteys [im Auy pue Yy3ING -

N00LS @9 0} pajoadxa s3sod Juawdo|onapay -

SpPo920.1d SI]es JO JUdWISIAUI-IY "Z




Ll

d3d FN Y}M UolJeuIPIO0) -

}SIXo Aew seale uoljeuiwiejuod umouyun jj —
sdeb sey eyep Auuy j| —
spodu jJuswdojanapal Ino Ajsijes  spiepuels,, j| —
:auIWLId)ap 0}
vy3IN4 Buidjay (dnous ubisaq Xiije) Jueynsuon

V10:d4d0
Japun _spJiepue}s,, 0} dn-uea|d 10} ajqisuodsal Auty -

Sonssj|
[ejudWIUoIIAUT SOAJ0SaY Awlly ainsug "€
—
@Eou_

JHL




8l

}SOAUI [[IM S10}SdAUl pue Aojdwia
[IIm sts9hojdwd a19ym JUBWIUOIIAUD UE 9}edl) -

SJUBUd) MaU 10} SaljludWie pue ‘aoudiudAuod ‘Ajajeg .

sossaulsnq
‘Ollgnd ‘elpaw ‘sjeIdiyo pal}odle o) sajepdn Juanbai4 -

S]S0D 992IAIDS
[euonjippe awo213A0 AJunod pue sumo} € dioH -

siopjoya)e)s paysies v
<A1} L1304

JHl




6l

so|qeley
SQOf »
saljadoud
anjeA-ybiy sziwixel\ .

salinn x sbuipjing

P21EPINO0 BZIWIUI »

T
=~} 1404

dHL




0c

195 puzjiedojorcq Jmm VHIN NV

olIeUD2S 9sed] Jo Jdjsuel] Auadoid Aoy
asna. pa}o9|as Joj saniunjioddo ased| Ajieq .

sjooied pa}oo|os Jo sojes Apeq .
sjoaloid uonealn qor -

sanunjioddQ




(X4

STADV 9 bl = J
SHADV #9 = SNOIWINOD
CAVMOH

SHADV LT = HUSUN0D
470D

SHIOV S = U

STADV L =1D

e LR HVNOK SHADV PP = O

OOM S3djJeys sjodied auQ aseyd o5d3l
s L

JHl




[44

2 e —
0007 00§ 0003 005 0SC O
SHADV 91
JOUI)) [RIIPIN

8

M

@

STUIV €F = VNIIVIN

STIDV 91 = YHINTO TVOITIIN
SHgov eEs=4d

ANHIOHAT

O 9selyd oa4




€¢C

Ajjeuoneusajui/Ajjeuoneu ajowosd pue A3ajelis duipueiq ajeas) .
sy}oadse ||e ul 9IUI||IIX3 0} JU2WHWWO) .
wedl VY34 9yl wod) sasuodsas ajeindde ‘1sej ‘|euoissajold
uoijedo| Suipuelsino ino aziseydwy .

saoAojdwa
pue siAojdwa 3s33y31iq pue 1s9q Joe413e 0} SBAIIUIUI N dZIIIN -

ajdoad pue s3uipjing yajew o3 saiisnpui 1934el Ajiuapi .
duluuni punos3d ayl HH .

Juawdo|anapay 9)eld]a22Yy 0) salbajes)s Aoy

jusawdojorapay Ynowuo 3104

@hmOu

dHl1




ve

sjuawanosduwi ainjonijsedjul 1oy pying/ubiseq -
sjuawanosduwl Jueud} 1o} piing/ubisaqg -

Juaby apiL -

l9)yo.g 19)sejp -

s9921M109S buiheaing .

S99IAI9S |esielrddy -

saniunjioddQ (dd¥) S991A198 [eijuajod
l\'l
~“f] L0+

dHl




14

[uny- pojdopejsuoinejnbaijeisawij/aob Tummm/:dny

Sd4¥/dLO4d 2Y3) ul papnjoul eLajud uonosjag -
sjesodoad

jo jdiaoau j3sod siapuodsai 9y} jJo |je 10 DWO0S
yjm uoirjerjobau 1o suorjerjobau aAISN|OXd 10 MOy -

posi}idApe

Ajjesnqnd aq o3} (sd4y) saniunjioddo aseaj |je aiinbay -
pjos aq 03 Ajiadoud jje uo (dLOo4N) @seyosind

0} 1330 10} s)sonbay pasijiaape Aoignd aisinbay -

suoije|nbay asea ] pue sajes

@.Eo.._

JdHL




9

2102 ‘9 Ae anp 3 |924ed 10} 1SO4d -
pajajdwio) [921ed d2ullD 10} JSOd -

2102 ‘€2 nady uo Away o3 pajjwgng uonedijddy
(1 9seyd) @o2uelhaauo jusawdojara J1wIouoIyq -

2102 ‘91 Aep Auowaiad buiubis
A0} paINPaYds JudWIaIby JO WNPUBIOWIA -

Away yj)im ssas0.id 19jsuel] jo snjelg

JHL

ﬂ..\\.%...w.O&



e

e ALIROMHENY INTWSOTIANG SWONONS A RSN MIN

AnioyIny Jusuido[oAd( 21WIOU0d] ASSISf MAN P g

‘Ay19do.id oy} jo anjea ay}
pue pajeasd sqof ayjy aznuixeul o}
“2SOAUI [JIM SI0)SIDAUIT
pue Aojdwo jjim si1aAojdwis
ys1ym ui asaydsouije ue ajeald

UOISSIIN VadINd




ADOPTED
MAY 16,2012

Resolution Regarding
Loan from the
New Jersey Economic Development Authority
to Advance the Fort Monmouth Redevelopment Effort

WHEREAS, Governor Christie signed the Fort Monmouth Economic
Revitalization Authority Act (“Act”), P.L. 2010, c. 51, to create the Fort Monmouth Economic
Revitalization Authority (“FMERA” or “Authority”); and

WHEREAS, under the FMERA Act, N.J.S.A. 52:271-26.jj, the New Jersey
Economic Development Authority (EDA) may assist the Authority by providing loans to fund
approved budgets; and

WHEREAS, FMERA needs working capital to further its redevelopment efforts,
and create jobs, prior to Economic Development Conveyance (EDC) revenue being generated,
for professional fees, for the conversion of the Post Library for Authority offices, and for
renovation of a building in accordance with a possible lease with US General Services
Administration (“GSA”); and

WHEREAS, the EDA Board approved the $4.5 million credit facility for
FMERA at the EDA Board’s May 8, 2012 meeting; and

WHEREAS, FMERA is expected to repay the credit facility in full, once EDC
proceeds are received, on terms agreed with the EDA; and

WHEREAS, the FMERA Audit Committee has reviewed and agreed to
recommend the amended EDC budget for the projected professional fees and the credit facility to
the full board for approval.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. As expressed in the attached board memorandum, the Members of the
Authority approve the amended FMERA budget for the projected professional fees and the
Authority’s $4.5 million credit facility from the EDA.
2. The Executive Director is authorized to execute documents and perform
all acts necessary to effectuate the above.

3. This resolution shall take effect immediately, but no action authorized
herein shall have force and effect until 10 days, Saturdays, Sundays, and public holidays
excepted, after a copy of the minutes of the Authority meeting at which this resolution was
adopted has been delivered to the Governor of the State of New Jersey for his approval, unless

1



during such 10-day period the Governor of the State of New Jersey shall approve the same, in
which case such action shall become effective upon such approval, as provided by the Act.

DATED: May 16, 2012 EXHBIT 4
ATTACHMENT




THE

ForRTIIZ

MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the Board of Directors
FROM: Bruce Steadman
Executive Director
DATE: May 16, 2012

SUBJECT: Loans from New Jersey Economic Development Authority to advance the Fort

Monmouth redevelopment efforts

Request:

Consideration and approval are requested of a credit facility totaling $4.5 million from the New
Jersey Economic Development Authority (EDA) for economic development conveyance

working capital purposes and renovation costs associated with two construction projects. The
credit facility has three components:

Facility A - $500,000 working capital term loan at Prime plus 100 basis points (floor of
3%) fixed at closing with a 12 month term. No payments will be required as interest will
be accrued and capitalized with all outstanding principal and interest due upon maturity.

Proceeds from this loan will be used to fund economic development conveyance (EDC)

expenses prior to receipt of EDC funds, and not day-to-day operating costs of the
Authority.

Facility B - $300,000 term loan at Prime plus 100 basis points (floor of 3%) with a 12-
month draw period where interest will be accrued and capitalized followed by a 5-year
term and 10-year amortization. The Authority will have 24 months to close on the facility
and commence the 12-month draw period. Proceeds from this loan will be used to
partially fund the conversion of a 10,650 square-foot building that formerly served as the

Post Library (Building 502) to a professional office building that will be occupied by the
Authority.

Facility C - $3,700,000 term loan at Prime plus 100 basis points (floor of 3%) with a 12-
month draw period where interest will be accrued and capitalized followed by a 5-year
term and 10-year amortization. The Authority will have 24 months to close on the facility
and commence the 12-month draw period. Facility C will be used to fund the renovation
of an 86,719 square foot building that will be leased by GSA.



Facilities A, B and C would be secured by an assignment of the Authority’s interest in the
pending US General Services Administration (“GSA”) lease (if obtained) and a lien on the
project property/leasehold improvements should ownership be transferred to the Authority.

All three loans will be due in full upon sale of the proposed GSA property should that occur prior
to the maturities of the loans.

Background:

The New Jersey Economic Development Authority (EDA) is an independent State agency that
serves as the State’s “bank for business” by financing small and mid-sized businesses,
administering tax incentives to retain and grow jobs, revitalizing communities through
redevelopment initiatives, and supporting entrepreneurial development by providing access to
training and mentoring programs. Under the FMERA Act, the EDA may assist the Authority by
providing loans to fund approved budgets. The EDA Board approved the $4.5 credit facility at
their May 8, 2012 meeting, subject to the FMERA Board’s approval.

Facility A will be used to fund economic development conveyance (EDC) expenses prior to
receipt of EDC funds, and not day-to-day operating costs of the Authority. This funding will
allow for certain tasks to occur on a parallel track with the negotiation and execution of the
Memorandum of Agreement with the Army and approval of the Economic Development
Conveyance Application. The professional fees were not included in the EDC budget presented
to the Board with the Consolidated Fiscal Plan in December. Accordingly, the Board is asked to
review the projected professional fees and approve amending the EDC budget to include the
Appraisal fees of $60,750, Legal fees of $125,000, Survey of $32,724 and Engineering of
$20,000 for an EDC professional fee budget of $238,474.

Facility B will be used to partially fund the conversion of a 10,650 square-foot building that
formerly served as the Post Library (Building 502) to a professional office building that will be
occupied by the Authority. The loan is to be fully advanced at closing. It is expected that this
facility will be repaid from the Authority’s interest in the proceeds from the sale of Parcel E (a
55 acre parcel) to CommVault (a publically-traded software and data management company). In
the event that this transaction is not completed, the loan will be repaid from the Authority’s share
of rent and sales proceeds from various assets including the golf course, the Health Clinic Parcel,
the GSA Parcel and any other sales and leases that might arise.

The Authority has submitted a grant request to the Office of Economic Adjustment in support of
funding for a minimum of $150,000 for the project. The grant is scheduled for review by the
Office of Economic Adjustment the week of May 7, 2012. A Request for Proposals has been
issued requesting bids for the renovations and the project was expected to have a total cost of
$450,000. The loan will be advanced upon the Authority’s selection of a bidder and amendment
to the FMERA budget to reflect the conversion of the Post Library. It is projected that this
facility will be repaid from the Authority’s share of the proceeds from the sale of Parcel E to
CommVault. In the event that this transaction is not completed, the loan will be repaid from the
Authority's share of rent and sales proceeds from various assets including the golf course, the
Health Clinic Parcel, the GSA Parcel and any other sales or leases that might arise.



Facility C will be used to fund the renovation of an 86,719 square foot building that will be
leased by GSA. The project is expected to have a total cost of $3.7 million and will be funded
entirely with the proposed loan. The loan is expected to be repaid from the Authority’s portion of
the rental income from the GSA lease. The Authority’s proposal is currently under review by
GSA, and the lease is expected to be finalized by September of 2012. Funding the proposed loan
will be contingent upon obtaining an executed lease with the GSA that generates sufficient rental
income to the Authority to service the annual debt payments plus operating expenses as
measured by a minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.10x and upon the Authority’s approval
of an amendment to the FMERA budget to reflect the conversion of the building renovation.

On May 8, 2012, the Audit Committee reviewed the three credit facilities totaling $4.5 million.

Subsequent to the meeting and its review of the provisions of the credit facility, the
Committee recommended that the three credit facilities be presented to the Board for approval.

Recommendation:

Accordingly, I recommend the Board’s approval to submit a loan application to the New Jersey
Economic Development Authority for the $4.5 million credit facility and the amendment of the
EDC budget for professional fees totaling $238,474.

Bruce Steadman

Prepared by: Beverlee Akerblom




